
 

 

 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 15, 2016 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
*4:00 P.M. SPECIAL TIME 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
2. Employee service awards.  
3. Presentation of retirement watches to Officer Greg Moos for 38 

years of service, and Lt. Richard Schaaf for 36 years of service. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the November 1, 2016 
Board of City Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
D. PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Conduct a public hearing to obtain public input relative to the 
proposal to adopt Ordinance No. 1241 amending and reenacting 
Sec. 105-1-2 and adding and enacting Sec. 105-1-15 of the 
Mandan Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles and signs 

 
E. BIDS: 

 
F. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2. Consider State Water Commission and AE2S amendments for 

Sunset Booster and Instrumentation & Controls project. 
3. Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the 

North Dakota Department of Transportation, Safety Division. 
4. Consider approval of Lakewood 9th stormwater pipe easement. 
5. Consider approval of Benefit for Nancy Miller games of chance at 

Mandan Eagles on November 18, 2016. 
6. Consider approval of Triple H Miniature Horse Rescue games of 

chance at Station West Bar and Grill November 21, 2016. 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Business Development & Communications Department update 
2. Bismarck Mandan Development Association update 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

November 15, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

3. Consider approval to proceed with plans to have building repairs 
done to the West end of the library building. 

4. Update on Recycling  
5. Consider selection of Ulteig Engineers for engineering services for 

McKenzie Drive reconstruction project. 
6. Consider Urban Roads and Urban Regional Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP) applications. 
 
I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1241 amending and 
reenacting Sec. 105-1-2 and adding and enacting Sec. 105-1-15 of 
the Mandan Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles and 
signs 

 
J. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
K. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. November 15, 2016 Working Session, Following Regular Meeting 
2. December 6, 2016 
3. December 20, 2016 
4. January 3, 2017 
 

L. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

TO:  City Employees—Service Recognition 

 

FROM: Diane I Leingang 

 

DATE:  November 15, 2016 

 

SUBJ:  SERVICE CERTIFICATE AND APPRECIATION GIFT FROM  

  THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

The Board would like to extend to you a personal invitation to be present at their 

Tuesday, November 15, 2016, 4:00 p.m. City Commission Meeting.  They would like the 

opportunity to extend their appreciation to each of you for your years of service and 

dedication to the City by personally presenting you with your years of service certificate 

plus Mandan Bucks ($2.00 for each year of service awarded in five year increments). 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE MANDAN BUCKS FOR 2016: 

 

25 YEARS OF SERVICE:    $50 

 

Mary Himmelspach Administrative Assistant/Data Collector 04/29/91 

Robert Smith  Firefighter     07/01/91 

Mike Hanson  Captain     07/23/91 

Brent Wilmeth  Police Sergeant    11/12/91 

Jeff Wright  Director of Public Works   06/17/91 

 

20 YEARS OF SERVICE:   $40 

 

Kim Hust  Meter Reader II     06/17/96 

Terry Aasand  Firefighter     01/24/96 

 

15 YEARS OF SERVICE:  $30 

 

Mitchell Bitz  Battalion Fire Chief     12/16/01 

Brendan Jochim Firefighter     02/24/01 

Michael Anfinson Equipment Operator II   07/09/01 

 

10 YEARS OF SERVICE: $20  

 

Ellen Huber  Business Development and Communications Director  

         02/01/06 

Andrew Beck  Firefighter     06/20/06 

Roll Call No. 2 



Patrick Martin  Captain     12/28/06 

Mary Henderson  Outreach Services Coordinator  07/10/06 

David Raugust  Police Sergeant    10/02/06 

Heidi Schuchard Police Youth Services Specialist  10/02/06 

Joseph Schaner Equipment Operator I    10/16/06 

James Steinman Equipment Operator I    05/15/06 

 

5 YEARS OF SERVICE: $10 

 

Derek Berger  Firefighter       11/09/11 

Matthew Bauer Firefighter     04/14/11 

Susan Harmon  Technical Services/Circulation Assistant 06/04/11 

April Jose  Investigator     12/05/11 

Pete Finck  Equipment Operator II   12/26/11 

Clayton Maloney Equipment Operator II   12/19/11 

    

 

                   

If you have any questions or note any changes, please give me a call at 667-3271. 

 

Cc:  Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

       City Commission (5) 

       Employees Listed and Their Department Heads  

 

 
 
 



 

 

Officer Greg Moos began his career with the Mandan Police Department on July 1, 1978. He had 

previously worked as a police officer in Casselton, ND and as a correctional officer for Ward County.  

Beginning in the 80’s, before the Fire Department had full-time paramedic firefighters, a small group of 

Police officers became certified as Emergency Medical Technicians. These officers would respond to 

medical calls just as the fire paramedics do today. Officer Moos volunteered for this job. He became a 

certified EMT and held that position for a number of years.  

Officer Moos has spent his career working in the Patrol Division. With his many years of service, he has 

been the most senior patrol officer in the department for much of his career. Several times over the 

years, he has been an acting supervisor. The department will lose a wealth of knowledge and experience 

with his retirement 

 

 

 

Lt. Richard Schaaf began his career with the Mandan Police Department on December 8, 1980. He was 

promoted to sergeant in 1985 and to lieutenant in 1990. 

Lt. Schaaf has been an instructor throughout his career. He has taught courses within the department. 

He has taught at the various Police Academies for many years. Students have often commented that he 

was a favorite instructor. While teaching at the Academies he did a lot of successful recruiting for our 

department! He also served as a negotiator for the West Dakota SWAT Team.  

Lt. Schaaf was known for the number of DUI arrests he made. Few officers ever matched him in this 

endeavor.  

Lt. Schaaf has been a great resource and teacher for officers in our department. The next lieutenant will 

have some big boots to fill.  

 

 

 

Roll Call No. 3 

Added November 14, 2016  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of November 1, 2016 

Page 1 of 5 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on November 1, 2016 

in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  The meeting was called 

to order by Vice President Rohr.  Commissioners present were Rohr, Braun, Davis, and Laber.  

Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Deputy Chief Bier, City Attorney 

Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, 

Business Development and Communications Director Huber, Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth, Principal Planner Decker, Assessor Shaw, and Building Official Lalim. Absent:  Mayor 

Helbling, Police Chief Ziegler. 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the agenda as 

presented.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval 

of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider for approval of the minutes from the October 18, 2016 regular City Commission 

meeting and the October 19, 2016, Public Works Expansion Presentation.  Commissioner Laber 

moved to approve the minutes as presented. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed. 

 

D.         PUBLIC HEARING:   

 

E.         BIDS:   

 

F.         CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Consider for approval Amendment No. 1 to the Engineering Service agreements with 

AE2S for the Emergency Generator Project. 

2. Consider approval of University of Mary Softball Team games of chance at Midway 

Lanes on November 19, 2016. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The 

motion passed. 

 

G.         OLD BUSINESS: 

 

H.         NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Acting as Board of Adjustment, consider variance request to allow construction of an 

accessory building in front of the principal building at 4008 Old Red Trail. City Planner Decker 

explained that this is a request to place an accessory building closer to the road than the primary 

structure on the lot.  The code specifies that accessory buildings be located to the rear of the 

primary structure.  The rear of this lot drops off quite dramatically. He explained there are a total 

of 12 houses located along the east side of Old Red Trail between 37
th

 Street Northwest and 

Highland Road Northwest with this situation. Only one other house sits farther off the road than 

4008 Old Red Trail. The garage for this house is approximately 156 feet from the curb and the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of November 1, 2016 

Page 2 of 5 

house is located behind the garage. The neighboring house is approximately 100 feet from the 

curb and the land drops behind the houses. There is a small shed already on the property that is 

closer to the road than the neighboring house and about 10 feet from the property line. The 

location of the proposed shed is approximately 55 feet from the side property line and 

approximately 120 feet from the curb line. The location of the proposed shed was selected to 

avoid the trees in the side yard and to place the shed close to the driveway. Commissioner Laber 

visited the site and spoke with the applicant and she attended the Planning & Zoning 

Commission meeting on this matter.  It was recommended to change the code so this type of 

action would be allowed without requiring a variance because this meets the variance request.  

Commissioner Braun commented that he agrees with the variance request for this property.  He 

recommended that in the future, the City Commission should review variance requests as issues 

arise on a case by case basis. The Planning and Zoning Commission voted 7 to 2 to recommend 

approval of the variance and to recommend that the $400 application fee be waived.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve a variance request for 4008 Old Red Trail to allow 

construction of an accessory building in front of the primary structure.  Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The 

motion passed. 

 

2. Consider Change Order #3 for Lakewood 8th, Street Improvement District #202.  

Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director presented a request to consider a change order 

for Street Improvement District No. 202, Project 2015-13 at the Lakewood 8th Addition, west of 

40
th

 Avenue along the 24
th

 Street corridor.   It would add the installation of approximately 130 

feet of sewer pipe on the east side of the project connecting the Lakewood 8th Addition pipe that 

was installed last year, with the segment of pipe that was recently completed from the 40
th

 

Avenue sewer main. The Lakewood 8
th

 Addition Water and Sewer 3-way agreement was 

approved last year and included this segment of pipe in order to make a complete connection to 

the sewer main already existing underneath the 24
th

 Street, (formerly Shoal Loop), corridor. 

During the construction of the sewer main for Lakewood 8
th

 Addition it was realized that the 

connection point available was lower than it needed to be in order to positively flow from that 

point to the sewer main at 40
th

 Avenue.  

 

The City initiated an emergency fix to get the sewer slope back in the positive direction. That 

emergency fix item was brought before the commission a couple of months ago and was recently 

completed.  This change order would initiate the construction of 130 feet of sewer so there is a 

complete connection of the sanitary sewer from Lakewood 8
th

 Addition to 40
th

 Avenue.  With 

this change order, the total Street Improvement District (SID) project is still 10% below the 

original estimate.  If approved, the plan is to break out the three properties that don’t receive 

direct benefit from this change order. This change order No. 3 is in the amount of $56,500. As 

previously discussed, three properties in the district would not participate and the remaining 

properties would be assessed an equal portion for this work. The change order will bring the total 

project amount to $1,123,150 which is 10% less than the original project estimate.   

 

Commissioner Rohr stated that this project is needed to be completed due to the development in 

that area.  Director Froseth stated that this sewer pipe was not included in the initial Lakewood 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of November 1, 2016 

Page 3 of 5 

8
th

 Addition project.  Commissioner Davis asked when the start of this change order portion of 

the project would begin. Director Froseth indicated that if approved tonight, the contractor will 

start on the work tomorrow because they have performed the correctional work to the other two 

segments.  The equipment was left in place to complete the project.  The paving contractor 

requested an extension and that would carry over to next year which is part of this change order.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve Change Order No. 3 for Street Improvement District 

#202, Lakewood 8
th 

Subdivision.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed. 

 

3. Consider proposal for additional Engineering services for the Mandan Public Works 

Facility.  Jeff Wright, Public Works Director, presented a proposal for additional engineering 

services for design changes for the Mandan Public Works Facility project.  The proposed design 

changes were discussed at the October 19
th

 meeting with the engineering firm, EPIC 

Engineering, and the city which included a quorum of City Commissioners. (The minutes of 

which were approved earlier in this meeting.) Discussion was held regarding relocating the 

proposed mechanic area from the existing storage shop and combine it with the proposed wash 

bay in the existing utility department building. The mechanic would have been isolated from 

other staff which would have been a safety concern. This would move the mechanic next to a 

new administration building in closer proximity to other staff. The proposed design scope change 

would be approximately $36,848.  Director Wright recommended approval of the proposal as 

presented.   

 

Commissioner Laber questioned whether this request would increase the cost of the overall 

project.  Director Wright stated he is unsure if there will be any increase because EPIC 

Engineering is unable to estimate that amount at this time.  Their contract is 5.5% of the 

construction cost of the building.  Commissioner Laber stated she brought this forward because 

she had concerns with the mechanic being located away from other staff for safety and oversight 

concerns.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve proposal for additional Engineering services for the 

Mandan Public Works Facility.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed. 

 

I.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.         First consideration of Ordinance 1253 amending and reenacting Sec. 105-1-2 (5) of the 

Mandan Code of Ordinances related to accessory buildings.  City Planner Decker explained this 

is a follow-up to the earlier variance request. He explained that this is one of many situations 

where locating accessory buildings in the rear yard is not possible.  There have been requests to 

allow accessory buildings to be located closer to the front property line than the principal 

building. Other specific standards have been added to the code.  These cases occur when the 

principal building is located far back on the lot or where topography or other lot conditions 

prevent locating a structure in the rear yard.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will be made 

aware of the request to modify the restrictions on locating accessory buildings, and if they have 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of November 1, 2016 

Page 4 of 5 

any questions Planner Decker will report back to the City Commission. Commissioner Laber 

requested that Building Official Lalim review it prior to the final consideration of this ordinance 

to be sure that we aren’t missing anything as far as building inspections.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1253 amending and 

reenacting Sec. 105-1-2 (5) of the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to accessory buildings. 

Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed. 

 

2. Consider resolution reducing fee for variance request at 4008 Old Red Trail. 

City Planner Decker stated that a variance request was made to allow location of a shed to be 

placed in front of the primary structure. This is the final step in that process. The current fee for 

this type of request is $400.  During discussion at their October 24, 2016 Planning and Zoning 

Commission meeting it was recommended that the limits on the location of accessory buildings 

be modified. This matter is related to the request for changes made by Ordinance 1253 to remove 

the restriction for which the variance at 4008 Old Red Trail was requested. Commissioner Laber 

stated that in this circumstance she would recommend waiving the fee because that was the 

indication given at the Planning and Zoning meeting. But she stated she is open for discussion on 

this situation.  Commissioner Braun stated that waiving the fee for this situation is appropriate 

because the residents involved with this action were led to believe by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission that the fee would be waived.  He suggested that the subcommittees be cautioned as 

to what to offer in these types of circumstances because the City Commission has the authority to 

make that determination.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the resolution waiving the fee for variance request at 

4008 Old Red Trail.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed. 

 

3. Consider Second Consideration and Final Passage of Ordinance 1252 amending and 

reenacting Section 20-7-15 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan relating to group 

health insurance. City Administration Neubauer stated that at the last meeting the Commission 

requested further information as to why the City pays the health insurance the month after the 

employee would be separated, terminated, or retired. That’s because North Dakota 

Administrative Code pertaining to the political subdivisions clarifies that an employee’s 

coverage must end the month following the month after termination of employment.  That comes 

as a result of the City paying the insurance premium one month in advance, thus the coverage is 

available. This is a policy within the PERS program. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Second Consideration and Final Passage of 

Ordinance 1252 amending and reenacting Section 20-7-15 of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Mandan relating to group health insurance. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of November 1, 2016 

Page 5 of 5 

J.          OTHER BUSINESS:   

 

L.         ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, Commissioner 

Laber moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:03 p.m.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  

The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

 Dennis Rohr 

Vice-President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 

 



Page 1 of 24 
 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Current sign requirements are administered through a policy document 

governing the actions of the Mandan Architectural Review Commission.  This proposed ordinance 

formalizes those procedures as part of the zoning requirements of the city municipal code in order to 

provide the city code enforcement officer and other city staff with authorization to enforce the sign 

requirements. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  With the growing use of electronic message signs and the 

proliferation of portable signs and flags, it is time to upgrade the regulation of signs. 

 

The draft ordinance reorganizes the current policy document so administrative items are first and the 

types of signs in alphabetical order follow.  Language was updated and formatting edits were made.  

Major changes between the current policy document and this proposed ordinance are: 

 

 Each type of sign has a set of standards. 

 A section has been added regulating bench signs. 

 The allowable wall sign size in relation to the wall that it is attached to was reduced from 40% to 

20%. 

 Portable sign companies must now register with the city and provide the city with a monthly 

report showing the location of each sign and the duration of the sign agreement. 

 Banners, flags and streamers are grouped under temporary signs. 

 The number of days per calendar year that portable signs can be used has been set at 240 days. 

 The length of streamers allowed on a lot was limited to three (3) times the width of the lot. 

 Approval by NDDOT of signs in the right-of-way of streets regulated by NDDOT has been added 

in conformance with federal law. 

 Numerous edits in phrasing were made to convert the document from a policy to an ordinance. 

 

Other edits were made to the code so they matched the sign requirements. 

 The standards for a sight triangle for fences were modified to be equal to that for signs. 

 Wording was added addressing vegetation in a sight triangle. 

 A specific allowance was added to recognize that business signs can be located in the front yard 

setback. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 10, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, P.E. 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

Douglas Lalim, Building Official 

SUBJECT: Conduct a public hearing to obtain public input relative to the 

proposal to adopt Ordinance No. 1241 amending and reenacting 

Sec. 105-1-2 and adding and enacting Sec. 105-1-15 of the Mandan 

Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles and signs 

 

  

Public Hearing No. 1 



Page 2 of 24 
 

The proposed Sec. 105-1-15 includes the following topics. 

 

(a) Purpose. 

(b) Definitions. 

(c) Application for permit. 

(d) Permit exemptions. 

(e) Processing of application. 

(f) Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC). 

(g) Unsafe or unlawful signs. 

(h) Non-conforming signs. 

(i) Maintenance and inspection. 

(j) General requirements and provisions. 

(k) Zoning district requirements. 

(l) Awnings and awning signs. 

(m) Basement business signs. 

(n) Benches or structures with signage. 

(o) Billboard signs. 

(p) Canopy and canopy signs. 

(q) Electronic signs. 

(r) Marquee and marquee signs. 

(s) Monument signs. 

(t) Post and panel signs. 

(u) Projecting signs.  

(v) Pylon and pole signs. 

(w) Roof signs. 

(x) Sidewalk signs. 

(y) Temporary signs. 

(z) Wall signs. 

(aa) Window signs. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Ordinance 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his review. 



Page 3 of 24 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Architectural Review Commission worked with staff over many 

months to prepare a draft ordinance.  Drafts developed for review by MARC were submitted for review 

and comment to sign companies and to private property owners who have their own portable signs. 

 

The draft ordinance developed by MARC was circulated to department directors and other senior staff for 

review.  The draft was also sent to NDDOT for review. 

 

The draft was then presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  The president of Planning and 

Zoning asked for members of the Planning and Zoning commission to volunteer to work with other 

volunteers to look closely at the wording.   Commissioners Frank and Laber volunteered.  Wayne Munson 

of Indigo Signworks, Inc. was at the meeting and volunteered.  At the next MARC meeting, Amber 

Larson volunteered.  Together with city staff Decker, Fettig, Huber and Lalim, the group met 5 times and 

suggested numerous edits to improve clarity and more closely conform to industry practice.  

 

The revised draft was then submitted to MARC.  MARC acted at their August 23, 2016 meeting to 

recommend that the ordinance be forwarded to the city commission for adoption. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission, at their August 29, 2016 meeting, reviewed the draft ordinance.  

After hearing testimony, they voted to table the consideration of the ordinance until the next meeting to 

allow the subcommittee to meet at least one more time to review the wording with primary focus on the 

wording regulating temporary signs.  The sight triangle wording also needed clarification. 

 

The subcommittee met on September 16, 2016 to discuss the needed wording adjustments. 

 

The subcommittee recommended that businesses be supplied with a copy of the draft and asked to 

comment.  The draft was posted on the Planning and Zoning page of the city web site and notices posted 

at other places on the city web site.  MARC members were supplied with a copy of the draft. 

 

The subcommittee met again on October 14, 2016 to review the wording one last time before submitting 

the draft ordinance to Planning and Zoning. 

 

An article appeared in The Morton County & Mandan News on October 14, 2016 asking for citizen input. 

 

Planning and Zoning at their October 24, 2016 meeting voted unanimously to recommend that the 

ordinance be adopted with some minor word editing to real estate signs. 

 

Staff thanks everyone who participated in this effort.  Although there were differences of opinion, people 

worked together to find a solution. 

 

Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTIONS: 

 

1. Open the public hearing. 

2. Close the public hearing. 

3. Move to item Resolutions and Ordinances No. 1. 

 

  



Page 4 of 24 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1241 

 

An Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Sec. 105-1-2 and Add and Enact Sec. 105-1-15 of 

the Mandan Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles and signs 

 

WHEREAS, the Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC) reviews and approves the 

number, design and location of signs, and 

 

WHEREAS, the sign guidelines that have been followed by the MARC are contained in a policy 

document, and 

  

WHEREAS, changes in sign technology and the proliferation of various types of signs require an 

upgrade to how the city regulates signs, and 

 

WHEREAS, it is difficult for the city to enforce a policy document used by a committee, and 

 

WHEREAS, many of the issues related to signs are not design issues but operation and 

maintenance issues, and 

 

WHEREAS, the requirements for a sight triangle apply to fences and vegetation as well as signs, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the requirements for a sight triangle that apply to fences need to be simplified and 

need to match the requirements that apply to signs, and 

 

WHEREAS, wording needs to be added addressing vegetation in a sight triangle, and 

  

WHEREAS, codifying sign requirements will allow the city to enforce the requirements. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Sec. 105-1-2 is amended to read. 

 

Sec. 105-1-2. - Supplementary provisions. 

  

(2) Projections into yards. 

 

a.  Steps, stairways, terraces and un-roofed porches or decks may extend into any 

minimum front or rear yard not more thanup to six (6) feet and into any 

minimum side yard not more thanup to four (4) feet, provided, however, that the 

floor thereof is no higher than that of the entrance to the building. 

 

b.  Chimneys may extend into any minimum yard not more thanup to two (2) feet. 

 

c. Business signs may be located in the front yard setback.  If located within a sight 

triangle they must meet the dimensional requirements specified in Sec. 105-1-15 

(j) (3). 

 

d.  No such feature shall extend be located closer than three (3) feet to a lot line. 



Page 5 of 24 
 

 

(4) Fences and walls. Fences and walls may be placed in any yard setback area provided that 

the height of fences and walls adjacent to a street, alley or driveway shall be lowered to 

three (3) feet within a sight triangle as specified in Sec. 105-1-15 (j) (3).The building line 

and yard requirements of these regulations shall not apply to retaining walls or other 

walls or fences. Walls and fences must meet the following criteria: 

  

a. Fence on corner lot. No wall or fence shall extend more than three feet above the top of 

curb within the areas identified herein in order to provide a clear sight triangle for drivers 

entering an intersection. 

  

1. For each leg of an intersection that is uncontrolled, the clear sight triangle shall begin 25 

feet back from the property corner measured along the property line. 

  

2. Reserved. 

 

3. For each leg of an intersection that is stop sign controlled, the clear sight triangle shall 

begin at a point ten feet behind the stop sign or 20 feet from the adjoining street curb line, 

whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

  

4. For each leg of a traffic light controlled intersection, the clear sight triangle shall begin at 

a point ten feet behind the stop bar or 15 feet from the intersecting street curb line, 

whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

 

 

(11) Vegetation within sight triangle. 

 

a. No new vegetation may be planted within a sight triangle for a street or alley 

unless it can be maintained such that it meets the requirements contained in Sec. 

105-1-15 (j) (3). 

 

b. If possible, existing vegetation located within a sight triangle for a street or alley 

shall be maintained such that it meets the requirements contained in Sec. 105-1-

15 (j) (3). 

 

c. Existing vegetation that cannot be maintained such that it meets the requirements 

of Sec. 105-1-15 (j) (3) need not be removed unless it creates an obvious danger 

to the ability of drivers and pedestrians to see past it on arterial or collector 

streets. 

  

 

Section 2.  Sec. 105-1-15 is created to read. 

 

Sec. 105-1-15. – Signs 

 

(a) Purpose.  The purpose of these sign requirements is to establish regulations that allow businesses 

to effectively convey information through signage while also maintaining a neat and orderly 

appearance.  These regulations apply to new signs installed after adoption of these regulations 

and existing signs that are rebuilt or relocated.  Permanent types of signs require a building permit 

and payment of the established fee.  Permanent signs must meet building and utility code 

requirements. 



Page 6 of 24 
 

 

(b) Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 

meaning. 

 

Awning means a roof-like structure that is supported by a metal or wood frame. 

 

Banner means a sign printed on lightweight, flexible material such as cloth, canvas or plastic that 

contains decorations and/or graphics or provides information to the public that is temporarily 

attached to a building or suspended between permanent poles or columns. 

 

Bench sign means a place for people to sit that also contains wording and/or graphics advertising 

a business or activity. 

 

Billboard means an off-premise sign constructed to industry standards that either advertises one 

business or contains an easily changeable face that can be rented by a business or multiple 

businesses for a period of time. 

 

Canopy means a structure or architectural element, other than an awning, that is made of metal or 

other noncombustible materials and is either freestanding or attached to a building. 

 

Canopy Sign means a message or identification which is affixed to or supported by a canopy. 

 

Directional means an on-premise sign using arrows and/or words to assist with internal 

circulation that may contain the name or logo of an establishment but no advertising copy. 

 

Display means a structure of any kind that is arranged, intended, designed or used as an 

advertisement, announcement or direction. 

 

Electronic or Changeable Copy means a portion of a sign that includes a screen or letters, 

characters, or graphics that are not permanently affixed to the structure, that can be modified from 

time to time either electronically or manually. 

 

Erect means to build, construct, attach, hang, place, suspend or affix. 

 

Facing or surface means the part of a sign upon, against, or through which the message is 

displayed or illustrated. 

 

Figurative wall mural means an illustration, diagram or design, not intended to sell a product or 

to advertise an establishment, that is used for aesthetic purposes or to enhance architectural 

features of a building. 

 

Flag sign means a loose section of fabric or other flexible material designed to move with the 

wind that is attached to a lightweight pole which is either pushed into the ground or into some 

form of support. 

 

Flashing means a pattern of changing light, pictures or wording for the purpose of drawing 

attention to the sign. 

 

Frame effect means a defining element on an electronic message center sign applied to a single 

frame or to transition from one frame to the next. 



Page 7 of 24 
 

 

Frame hold means the duration or interval of time during which each individual advertisement or 

message is displayed on any sign which is capable of sequentially displaying more than one 

advertisement or message on its display surface. 

 

Freestanding means a sign supported by uprights or braces placed in or upon the ground surface 

with no attachment to any building. 

 

Illuminated means a sign that has either internal or external lights or luminous tubes. 

 

Marquee means a hood or awning of permanent construction projecting from the wall of a 

building above an entrance and extending over a sidewalk. 

 

Marquee sign means a message attached to the face of a marquee. 

 

Monument means a freestanding sign where the entire bottom of the sign is affixed to a base on 

the ground that fully supports the sign. 

 

NIT means a unit of illuminative brightness equal to one candela (12.5 lumens) per square meter 

measured perpendicular to the rays of the source. 

 

Non-conforming means a sign that was lawfully erected prior to the effective date of the 

ordinance that adopted this article and that fails to conform to any of the provisions of this article. 

 

Obstructive means a sign erected with the purpose of hiding or covering from the view of the 

public an adjacent or nearby sign. 

 

Off-premise means a sign advertising a business, person, service or product which is located or 

conducted elsewhere than on the premises where the sign is located. 

 

On-premise means a sign advertising a business, service or major product located on that 

property. 

 

Permanent means a sign not falling under the definitions of temporary or portable. 

 

Pole means a free standing sign supported from the ground by one or two supports that are 

normally bare. 

 

Portable means a sign designed to be transported, including inflatable devices and signs carried 

or attached to a trailer or vehicle unless such trailer or vehicle is used in normal day-to-day 

operations of the business. 

 

Post and panel means a freestanding sign that does not have a base other than the support posts. 

 

Privilege panel means a permanent sign provided by the distributor or manufacturer of a product 

which utilizes a portion of the sign to advertise a specific product with the rest of the sign 

allocated to identifying business located at the property upon which the sign is placed. 

 

Projecting means a sign which is attached directly to a building wall and which extends more 

than twelve (12) inches from the face of the wall. 

 



Page 8 of 24 
 

Pylon means a free standing sign supported from the ground by one or two supports that are 

normally shrouded. 

 

Roof means a sign erected or constructed wholly upon or over the roof of a building. 

 

Sign means any written announcement, demonstration, display, illustration, or insignia used to 

advertise or promote the interests of any person when the same is displayed or placed out of doors 

in view of the general public and shall include every detached sign or billboard and every sign 

attached to or forming a component part of any building marquee, canopy, awning, street clock, 

pole, parked vehicle or other object whether stationary or moveable. 

 

Sign size means the message area of the sign without considering the structure of the sign. 

 

Signable wall surface area means the portion of a building wall that is free of windows, doors or 

major architectural details. 

 

Sight triangle means the area on each side of a driveway, the area at the intersection of two streets 

or the area at the intersection of an alley and a street that provides visibility along the street for 

drivers of vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists wishing to turn onto or cross the adjoining street or 

exit the property onto or across the street. 

 

Streamer means one or more small, typically triangular, flags attached to a line or cable that can 

be tied or otherwise attached to a portion of a permanent structure or sign post. 

 

Temporary means a sign that is designed to be used only for a limited period of time to advertise 

a special event or activity and includes banners, construction signs, finance signs, real estate 

signs, flag signs, political signs, portable signs and streamers. 

 

Wall mount means a sign which is affixed parallel to the exterior wall of a building and which 

does not project more than twelve (12) inches from the surface to which it is attached nor does it 

extend beyond the top of any parapet wall. 

 

Window means a sign which faces the exterior of the building and is applied in any manner to the 

window from either side. 

 

(c) Application for permit.  An application for issuance of a sign permit shall be submitted to the City 

of Mandan Building Department.  An application shall include all necessary drawings and 

specifications showing dimensions and materials to be used on the sign.  Required fees must be 

paid before an application will be processed.  Fees for processing and issuance of a sign permit 

shall be set by action of the board of city commissioners.  Actions requiring a permit include the 

following. 

 

(1) Alterations to an existing sign.  No sign shall be altered except in conformity with the 

provisions of this policy.  The changing of moveable parts of an approved sign that is 

designed for such changes, repainting the sign or reposting of display matter shall not be 

deemed an alteration provided the conditions of the original approval and the 

requirements of this section are not violated. 

 

(2) New signs. 

 



Page 9 of 24 
 

(3) Relocated signs.  A sign that is moved to another location on the same premise or to 

another premise. 

 

(d) Permit exemptions.  No permit shall be required for signs or outdoor display structures listed 

here.  However, not having to get a permit does not relieve the owner of the sign from 

responsibility for its erection and maintenance in a safe and conforming manner to the 

requirements contained in this section. 

 

(1) Directional or instructional signs.  Signs not exceeding four (4) square feet in area which 

provide direction, instruction or identify public facilities; are located entirely on the 

property to which they pertain; and do not in any way advertise a business. 

 

(2) Political signs.  Signs that meet the standards contained in this section. 

 

(3) Professional name plates.  Professional name plates not exceeding two (2) square feet in 

area. 

 

(4) Real estate, construction and finance signs.  These signs do not require a permit but signs 

larger than sixteen (16) square feet must be registered with the Building Department. 

 

(5) Rental signs.  Rental companies that provide portable signs to businesses must register 

with the Building Department and provide an inventory of where the signs are located by 

the 5th business day of each month in which they have a sign rented within the city.  The 

inventory shall include the dates that the sign was or will be in place. 

 

(6) Special displays.  Decorative displays used for holidays, public demonstrations or 

promotion of civic welfare or charitable purposes and on which there is no commercial 

advertising. 

 

(7) Store signs.  Signs erected on a show window or on the door of a store or business 

establishment which announces the name of the proprietor and the nature of the business 

conducted therein as well as temporary signs placed in windows used to advertise a 

special product or sale. 

 

(8) Street signs.  Signs erected by the city for street direction. 

 

(9) Transit directions.  Signs designating the location of a transit line, a railroad station or 

other public carrier not more than three (3) square feet in area. 

 

(e) Processing of application.  Upon receipt of a sign permit application, the Building Department 

shall schedule the application for review and approval by the Mandan Architectural Review 

Commission (MARC).  The MARC meeting shall occur within thirty (30) days of receipt of the 

application.  Once the MARC has reviewed the application and rendered a decision, the Building 

Department will process the application and issue any permit recommended by the MARC. 

 

(f) Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC).  The MARC is responsible to apply the 

standards contained in this section when reviewing any sign application submitted to it.  The 

MARC shall review the application and notify the Building Department of its determination.  If 

the MARC approves the application, the Building Department will issue the appropriate permit.  

The MARC may attach any conditions it deems appropriate to any approval granted. 

 



Page 10 of 24 
 

(g) Unsafe or unlawful signs.  The Building Department shall take whatever action is necessary to 

correct an unsafe condition with a sign or have an unlawful sign removed.  If necessary, the 

Building Department may file a complaint with any court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

(1) Whenever any sign becomes insecure, in danger of falling or otherwise unsafe, the owner 

of the sign shall be notified by the Building Department and given a specified time to 

correct the problem.   

 

(2) The Building Department shall order the removal of any sign that has been unlawfully 

installed, erected or maintained in violation of any of the provisions of this code. 

 

(3) The Building Department shall notify the owner and lessee of a building or structure 

whenever a sign is so erected as to obstruct free ingress to or egress from a required door, 

window, fire escape or other required exit way and shall require appropriate corrective 

action within a specified time frame. 

 

(4)  Signs damaged by storm or accident shall be repaired to a safe condition by the owner of 

the sign at the direction of the Building Department within a specified period of time.  

Signs that present a clear and present danger to the public shall be removed or repaired 

within forty-eight (48) hours.  Signs that are impeding traffic may be removed 

immediately by the city and the owner of the sign billed for the costs incurred by the city. 

 

(5)  Signs that are destroyed or removed shall not be re-erected, reconstructed, rebuilt or 

relocated unless the sign is made to comply with all applicable requirements of this 

section.   

 

(6) A sign that no longer advertises a bona fide business or product is considered an unlawful 

sign and must be removed or covered. 

 

(h) Non-conforming signs. 

 

(1) A previously approved or permitted and properly maintained non-conforming permanent 

sign will be allowed until the building is remodeled to an extent greater than fifty percent 

(50%) of its value, a new business occupies the building or structural or dimensional 

changes are proposed for the sign. 

 

(i) Maintenance and inspection. 

 

(1) It shall be the duty and responsibility of the owner or lessee of every sign to maintain the 

sign in a clean, sanitary and healthful condition. 

 

a. The sign, together with all supports, braces, guy wires and anchors, and 

individual letters and symbols shall be kept in good repair 

 

b. Parts that are not galvanized or constructed of approved corrosion-restrictive 

materials shall be painted as necessary to prevent corrosion. 

 

(2) Every sign for which a permit has been issued shall be inspected by the Building 

Department upon completion of erection or installation. 

 

(j) General requirements and provisions. 



Page 11 of 24 
 

 

(1) All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity to the provisions for materials, 

loads and stresses of the adopted version of International Building Code Appendix H. 

 

(2) No sign shall be illuminated by other than electrical means and electrical devices.  Wiring 

shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of the ND State Electrical Board.  

No open spark or flame shall be used for display purposes unless specifically approved in 

writing by the Building Department and the Fire Chief. 

 

(3) No sign shall be erected at the intersection of any street, alley or driveway in such a 

manner as to obstruct the sight triangle. 

 

a. A sign shall not be located within a sight triangle if the portion of the sign or 

support posts between three (3) feet and ten (10) feet above the edge of the 

roadway will be greater than ten (10) inches wide. 

 

b. The sight triangle for intersections that are not traffic light controlled is the area 

measured along the curb or edge of pavement of the street to a point with a 

straight line distance of twenty-five (25) feet from the curb or edge of pavement 

of the intersecting street. 

 

c. No sight triangle is required for intersections that are traffic light controlled. 

 

d. For intersections that are only partially controlled with stop signs, the sight 

triangle is only applied to the side streets that have stop signs. 

 

e. For an alley or driveway, the other side of the triangle is measured perpendicular 

to the street along the curb or edge of pavement of the alley or driveway to a 

point that is a distance of fifteen (15) feet from the curb or edge of pavement of 

the street.  Sight triangles for alleys or driveways in commercial or industrial 

districts are not required but are recommended.  Sight triangles for alleys and 

driveways in residential districts are not required. 

 

f. In zoning districts with a zero front yard setback, the depth of the sight triangle is 

limited to the boulevard area of the public right-of-way. 

 

g. Where existing conditions on a lot limit the options for location of a sign, the 

applicant may request that the MARC approve location of a designated type of 

sign within the limits of the sight triangle for a specific site.  The reasons for the 

approval of the location must be documented in the minutes of the MARC 

meeting. 

 

(4) No sign shall be erected that closely resembles or approximates the size, shape or form of 

an official traffic regulation sign or marker. 

 

(5) No private sign shall be attached to a public building or structure, a utility pole or any 

existing public signage. 

 

(6) The light for a sign shall not be directed into any residential dwelling or towards any 

oncoming vehicle. 

 



Page 12 of 24 
 

(7) Signs, other than window signs, containing or utilizing flashing, rotating, or moving 

lights shall be prohibited unless they are used solely for public safety, e.g. construction 

markers. 

 

(8) The use of laser lights, strobe lights, searchlights, beacons and similar upward or outward 

oriented lighting as part of any sign is prohibited. 

 

(9) No sign or wall mural shall be painted on any building without prior approval from the 

MARC. 

 

(10) No sign shall be attached to, affixed to, painted or drawn on trees, shrubs, rocks, other 

natural features or organic material unless approved by the MARC or the city 

commission for a specific site or application.  Certain species of wood products may be 

used for construction of a sign with approval of the MARC or city commission. 

 

(11) No Permanent sign shall use fluorescent type coloring such as that known as “day-glow”. 

 

(12) No sign shall be attached to the stairwell railing of a basement business unless a site 

specific waiver of this requirement is approved by the MARC or the city commission. 

 

(13) Obstructive signs are prohibited. 

 

(14) No advertising sign within three hundred (300) feet of a residentially zoned area shall 

have any bulb that is greater than eleven (11) watts of incandescent lighting or generate 

more than one hundred sixty-five (165) lumens in light brightness.  Public service 

information signs and other electronic message signs permitted within an area zoned for 

commercial or industrial use shall have a bulb no greater than seventy-five (75) watts of 

incandescent lighting or generate more than one thousand one hundred twenty-five 

(1125) lumens of light brightness. 

 

(15) Illuminated signs are permitted for buildings housing three (3) or more dwelling units. 

 

(16) No sign shall hide from a driver’s view or interfere in any material degree with the 

effectiveness within five hundred (500) feet of any traffic control device, sign or signal. 

 

(17) No advertising sign, by reason of location, position, shape, or color may be designed to 

be confused with any public sign.  The use of cautionary words such as:  “stop”, 

“danger”, “caution”, “beware” or similar words is prohibited. 

 

(18) No sign shall contain statements, words, or pictures of an obscene, indecent, 

pornographic, or immoral character. 

 

(19) Except for sidewalk signs in the downtown commercial area and signs above sidewalks, 

no sign shall be allowed in the public right-of-way unless otherwise provided for in this 

section. 

 

(20) Signs that can only be accessed from a state controlled roadway must have written 

approval from NDDOT. 

 

(21) No motorized vehicle or trailer on which is attached thereto or located thereon any sign 

or advertising device that provides the advertisement of products, services, or directs 



Page 13 of 24 
 

people to a business may be parked in a public right-of-way or on public property.  This 

subsection shall not apply to vehicles that have been decorated with signs or messages 

advertising a business or product or to vehicular signs that are attached to or affixed on a 

motor vehicle used in the normal day-day-day operations of a business. 

 

(22) No sign shall be permitted to obstruct any window, door, fire escape, stairway, or 

opening intended to provide air, ingress or egress for any building or structure. 

 

(23) Audio speakers or any form of pyrotechnics are prohibited on or in association with a 

sign. 

 

(k) Zoning district requirements. 

 

(1) On single family and two family residentially zoned lots or subdivisions the following 

sign standards shall apply. 

 

a. Each lot may have one (1) sign not exceeding two (2) square feet in area.  The 

sign may be of a wall, foundation or projecting type.  Signs may not project past 

the property boundary.  House numbers are not counted as a sign. 

 

b. For existing subdivisions, one (1) sign not exceeding twelve (12) square feet in 

area identifying the subdivision is allowed at each principal entrance. 

 

c. For existing subdivisions that were platted more than two (2) years ago, one (1) 

sign not exceeding six (6) square feet in area may be erected at each principal 

entrance to the subdivision advertising property for sale or rent within the 

subdivision. 

 

d. For new subdivisions that were platted less than two (2) years ago, one (1) sign 

not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet in area may be erected at each principal 

entrance to the subdivision advertising lots or dwellings for sale within the 

subdivision. 

 

e. No sign shall be illuminated. 

 

(2) In business and industrial zoning districts and residential lots containing three (3) or more 

dwelling units the following sign standards shall apply. 

 

a. Each business on a lot containing one or two businesses may have an individual 

freestanding sign.  Lots with more than two businesses must share any 

freestanding signage.  The MARC shall determine the number of signs allowed 

on any lot with multiple businesses. 

 

b. Each business may have one (1) projecting, roof or marquee sign per building 

side. 

 

c. Each business may have one (1) wall sign per building side, unless the MARC 

approves a site specific waiver to allow more than one (1) sign per building side. 

 

d. Each multi-family residential lot may have up to two (2) signs. 

 



Page 14 of 24 
 

(l) Awnings and awning signs. 

 

(1) Awnings may extend from a building over the public right-of-way two (2) feet less than 

the distance from building to curb.  Such structures shall be at least eight (8) feet above 

the sidewalk or ground grade line.  Suspended signage or valances shall be at least eight 

(8) feet above the sidewalk or ground grade line. 

 

(2) Awnings should complement the building architecture.  Awning shape, color, material, 

and location on the building shall be compatible with the building architecture and relate 

well to the dominant architectural features. 

 

(3) Signs will be allowed on the band or the valance.  Signs on a sloped surface shall be at 

the discretion of the MARC.  The sign band shall be no greater than twelve (12) inches in 

the downtown commercial area.  Signs shall not be the dominant feature of an awning. 

 

(4) Awnings in historic areas and on historic buildings should respect the history of the area 

and buildings. Historic colors, styles, and mounting locations based on research, old 

photographs, and historic records are encouraged. 

 

(5) Awnings should generally be located to fit within window and/or door recesses. 

 

(6) A uniform shape, color, and placement should be used when multiple awnings are 

proposed for a single building. New awnings should generally match any existing 

awnings on the building. Existing inconsistent awning styles of a building do not justify 

approval of additional or new awning styles. Inconsistent awning styles are to be reduced, 

not increased with new awning approvals. 

 

(7) Individual awning proposals for multi-tenant buildings will be evaluated as to their 

acceptability as a model for use by all other similarly located tenants in the buildings. 

 

(8) Awnings shall be approved by the MARC if installed under significant eave overhangs, 

cantilevers, or other prominent architectural projections. 

 

(9) In the downtown commercial area, day-glow colors, reflective materials and illuminated 

back lighting of transparent materials are not allowed unless a site specific waiver of this 

restriction is granted by the MARC. 

 

(10) Solid colors or low contrast, non-jarring patterns are generally acceptable awning color 

treatments. 

 

(11) Fabric awnings shall not be painted. 

 

(12) Awnings shall be maintained in good repair with a clean and attractive appearance as 

long as they are installed on the building. Torn, bent and/or faded awnings shall be 

repaired, replaced or removed. 

 

(13) An application for an awning that is submitted to the MARC shall include a sample of the 

proposed awning material to show color, texture and finish. 

 



Page 15 of 24 
 

(14) If any upper story window is treated with an awning, then all upper story windows on 

that side of the building shall be treated with awnings, unless another design is approved 

by the MARC. 

 

(m) Basement business signs. 

 

(1) When only one business is utilizing a basement area, an appropriate wall sign may be 

provided. 

 

(2) When two businesses exit from the basement of a building, appropriate signs or 

directories to such businesses may be provided on the wall over the entrance to the 

basement and coordinated with other building signs. 

 

(3) Signs or directories shall not exceed nine (9) square feet in area. 

 

(n) Benches or structures with signage. 

 

(1) The total number of bench signs located in any district shall be limited and approved by 

the MARC. 

 

(2) Bench signs shall not be located closer than seventy-five (75) feet to one another 

(measured from base to base). 

 

(3) Maximum height of four (4) feet. 

 

(4) Maximum sign area of twenty (20) square feet. 

 

(5) Only one advertising panel advertising one business is permitted per bench. 

 

(6) Bench rental companies shall be licensed with the City. 

 

(7) All signs and structures shall be properly maintained, well-kept and in good condition. 

 

(8) If signage is out of date, the signage or the structure shall be removed or replaced. 

 

(9) Signs must advertise Mandan businesses or events if they are located within public right-

of-way. 

 

(10) MARC must review and recommend the design and content of any bench sign that will 

be located in public right-of-way.  The city commission must grant approval for any 

bench sign that is to be located in public right-of-way.  City commission may include 

conditions or design requirements with its approval. 

 

(o) Billboard signs. 

 

(1) No billboard sign shall exceed a height of forty (40) feet above the lot grade of the 

adjacent roadway. 

 

(2) The exposed upright or super structure of billboard signs shall be of non-corrosive metal 

materials or be painted a color so as to blend with the surrounding environment. 

 



Page 16 of 24 
 

(3) Billboard signs shall be of all steel or similar material, constructed and designed in 

accordance with the Mandan Building Code. 

 

(4) There shall be a minimum of three hundred (300) feet between billboards. 

 

(5) All billboards shall meet City, State and Federal requirements and must be located totally 

on private property. 

 

(p) Canopy and canopy signs. 

 

(1) Canopies and canopy signs attached to a building may extend from the building into the 

public right-of-way to a point within two (2) feet of the back of curb or edge of pavement 

where there is no curb.  No portion of such a structure or anything attached to the 

structure shall be lower than eight (8) feet above the sidewalk or ground grade line. 

 

(2) Canopy signs shall not extend more than twelve (12) inches above or below a canopy. 

 

(3) Canopy signs shall not extend closer than three (3) inches to any edge of a canopy. 

 

(4) Canopy signs may be located beneath or above an overhead canopy but shall not project 

lower than eight (8) feet above the sidewalk. 

 

(5) There shall be only one (1) canopy sign per business on each street exposure unless 

otherwise approved by the MARC. 

 

(6) Canopies should complement the building architecture. Canopy shape, color, material, 

and location on the building shall be compatible with the building architecture, relate well 

to the dominant architectural features, and not cover up or hide handsome materials or 

important details. 

 

(7) Canopies in historic areas and on historic buildings should respect the history of the area 

and buildings. Historic colors, styles, and mounting locations based on research, old 

photographs, and historic records are encouraged. 

 

(8) Individual canopy proposals for multi-tenant buildings will be evaluated as to their 

acceptability as a model for use by all other similarly located tenants in the buildings. 

 

(9) Solid colors and/or low contrast, non-jarring patterns are generally acceptable canopy 

color treatments. 

 

(10) All applications for canopies shall include a sample of the proposed awning material to 

show color, texture, and finish. 

 

(11) If any upper story window is treated with a canopy, then all upper story windows shall be 

treated with canopies or as otherwise approved by the MARC. 

 

(q) Electronic signs. 

 

(1) Flashing is prohibited. 

 



Page 17 of 24 
 

(2) The City reserves the right to require any sign to be modified based on display message 

including timing or frame changes or effects of movements displayed. 

 

(3) Ground signs, as defined by the IBC Appendix H102 and commonly referred to as 

billboards or off-premise signs, are permitted in commercial and industrial districts.  

When adjacent to federal or state aid highways, all NDDOT standards for design and 

approval must be followed.  In those districts where permitted, ground signs must be 

spaced at least three hundred (300) feet apart along the roadway.  Ground signs may not 

exceed sixteen (16) feet by fifty (50) feet per face of sign in size (multiple faces must be 

treated as one face), and the support structure and sign may not exceed fifty (50) feet in 

height, measured from the top of the nearest curb line to the top of the sign or structure.  

Additional requirements for digital billboards are included elsewhere in this section. 

 

(4) No electronic message center sign installed after January 1, 2010 shall be permitted to 

operate unless it is equipped with: 

 

a. A default mechanism that shall freeze the sign in one position as a static message 

if a malfunction occurs; and 

 

b. A mechanism able to automatically adjust the illuminative brightness of the 

display according to ambient light conditions by means of a light 

detector/photocell. 

 

(5) An electronic message center sign installed prior to January 1, 2010 shall be allowed to 

continue operation provided the brightness of the sign does not exceed a maximum 

illumination of five thousand (5,000) NITS during daylight hours or a maximum 

illumination of seven hundred fifty (750) NITS between one-half hour before sunset to 

one-half hour after sunrise as measured at the sign's face at maximum brightness.  These 

illumination levels may be set manually or by an alternative method approved by the 

Building Official. 

 

(6) Only one (1) electronic message center sign shall be allowed per property. 

 

(7) The electronic message center sign portion of any sign shall not exceed the area specified 

in the table below.  The maximum size is based on the type of zoning district in which the 

sign is located and the functional classification of the roadway adjacent to the sign or 

fifty (50) percent of the total sign area, whichever is less. 

 
 Functional Classification of Adjacent Roadway 

Zoning District Interstate 
Principal 

Arterial 

Minor 

Arterial 
Collector Local 

Industrial 100 sf 100 sf 72 sf 48 sf 32 sf 

Commercial 100 sf 100 sf 72 sf 48 sf 32 sf 

Neighborhood Commercial 72 sf 72 sf 48 sf 32 sf 32 sf 

 

(8) Electronic message center signs shall be subject to the following operational 

requirements: 

 

a. The sign shall have a frame hold time of no less than one (1) second.  The use of 

animation and background animation is allowed and is not subject to the one (1) 

second frame hold time requirement. 



Page 18 of 24 
 

 

b. Entrance and exit effects may be used to transition from one frame to another, 

provided said entrance effects result in all of the text within the frame appearing 

at once or in the order that the text is normally read (including, but not limited to, 

scrolling from right to left or scrolling from bottom to top entrance effects).  

Entrance effects where all of the text within the frame does not appear at once or 

in the order that the text is normally read are prohibited (including, but not 

limited to, scrolling from left to right, scrolling from top to bottom, and entrance 

effects referred to as slot machine, slots, splice, mesh, radar, kaleidoscope and 

spin).  There are no limitations on the types of exit effects used.  Except for such 

transitions, each frame shall remain static with no additional frame or hold 

effects applied to text within the frame (including, but not limited to, the fading 

or flashing on any part of the message and hold effects referred to as flash, spin, 

twinkle, wavy and rumble).  The use of bijou lights as a frame effect is allowed. 

 

c. The use of streaming video or full-motion video on any electronic message center 

sign is prohibited. 

 

(9) Electronic message center signs located within three hundred (300) feet of any 

residentially zoned district, as measured from any part of the sign to the nearest property 

line within any residential zoning district, are subject to the following additional 

requirements: 

 

a. The sign shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in area, or fifty (50) percent 

of the total sign area, whichever is less. 

 

b. Between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., the sign shall be allowed to operate.  Between 

10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., the sign shall only display static images with a frame 

hold time of no less than three (3) seconds and shall be limited to instantaneous 

transitions from one static frame to another static frame without the use of any 

frame entrance, exit or hold effects or the use of any animation or background 

animation. 

 

(10) An electronic message center sign cannot be installed on an existing sign that is 

nonconforming unless the entire sign is brought into compliance with all applicable 

provisions of this chapter. 

 

(11) No portion of any existing sign shall be replaced with an electronic message center sign 

unless a sign permit is obtained for the new electronic message center sign. 

 

(12) Digital billboards must be located at least three hundred (300) feet from any other non-

digital ground sign (billboard), at least twelve hundred (1,200) feet from any other digital 

billboard, and at least five hundred (500) feet from an interstate interchange, as measured 

from any part of the sign to the nearest portion of any part of any other billboard sign on 

the same side of the roadway or to the nearest right-of-way line of the interchange.  

Digital billboards that face state or federal highways are subject to NDDOT regulation. 

 

(13) Digital billboard signs shall have a frame hold time of no less than seven (7) seconds and 

must transition instantaneously from one static image to another static image without any 

special effects.  The use of streaming video, full-motion video, and animation or frame 

effects is prohibited. 



Page 19 of 24 
 

 

(r) Marquee and marquee signs. 

 

(1) Marquees and marquee signs attached to a building may extend from the building into the 

public right-of-way to a point within two (2) feet of the back of curb or edge of pavement 

where there is no curb.  No portion of such a structure or anything attached to the 

structure shall be lower than eight (8) feet above the sidewalk or ground grade line.   

(2) A sign attached to the face of a marquee may not exceed three (3) feet above the top edge 

of the marquee and not to extend below the marquee’s lower edge. 

 

(3) Marquee signs shall be constructed entirely of approved materials and size. 

 

(4) Marquee signs may extend the full length but in no case shall they project beyond the 

ends of the marquee. 

 

(s) Monument signs. 

 

(1) A monument sign shall be solid from the grade to the top of the structure using non-

flammable architectural materials. 

 

(2) The minimum setback is ten (10) feet from the property line or sight triangle, whichever 

is greater. 

 

(3) The maximum allowable height of a monument sign is twelve (12) feet unless the sign is 

set back farther from the property line or sight triangle.  For each additional two (2) feet 

of setback, the height of the sign can be increased by one (1) foot up to a maximum sign 

height of sixteen (16) feet. 

 

(4) Monument signs may be incorporated into a retaining wall or masonry wall. 

 

(5) The bottom edge of the sign portion of a monument sign must be in continuous contact 

with the base and be a minimum of twelve (12) inches above grade. 

 

(6) Monument signs must be placed within a landscaped area. 

 

(t) Post and panel signs. 

 

(1) A post and panel sign shall be no taller than twelve (12) feet off the ground. 

 

(2) No part of the sign may encroach on the sight triangle. 

 

(3) The bottom edge of a post and panel sign must be a minimum of twelve (12) inches 

above grade and must be placed within a landscaped area. 

 

(4) The support posts must be made of a non-flammable material or as otherwise approved 

by the MARC. 

 

(u) Projecting signs. 

 

(1) The bottom edge of the sign board, or of any affixed devices, must be at least eight (8) 

feet above grade. 



Page 20 of 24 
 

 

(2) A projecting sign or any part thereof may not project more than thirty-six (36) inches 

from the face of the supporting building, not be within less than two (2) feet of the back 

of the curb, not be more than ten (10) feet in height and not be greater than thirty (30) 

inches in width. 

 

(3) No projecting sign shall extend more than four (4) feet above a building roof eave or 

parapet. 

 

(4) No projecting sign shall originate from other than a front wall of the building. The 

maximum square footage for sign face is fifty (50) square feet unless otherwise approved 

by the MARC. 

 

(5) No projecting sign shall be permitted in any alleyway. 

 

(v) Pylon and pole signs. 

 

(1) No pylon or pole sign shall extend into a public utility easement or right-of-way. 

 

(2) Unless a greater height is approved by the MARC for a specific property, the maximum 

pylon or pole sign height is twenty-five (25) feet in the downtown commercial area; forty 

(40) feet in the other commercial and industrial districts; and sixty (60) feet in the 

Gateway Overlay Zone. 

 

(3) The sign portion of a pylon or pole sign shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet above the top 

of curb or surrounding grade, whichever is higher.  The clearance shall be a minimum of 

thirteen (13) feet within a vehicle parking or travel area. 

 

(4) For single business properties with sufficient frontage, multiple pylon or pole signs will 

be allowed provided they can be set back from the adjacent or adjoining lot line a 

minimum of twenty-five (25) feet and are no closer to each other, as measured parallel to 

the property frontage, than one hundred fifty-five (155) feet or otherwise as approved by 

the MARC. 

 

(5) A pylon or pole sign’s support shall originate from the surface of the ground only and be 

made of non-flammable material. 

 

(6) Pylon or pole signs may be used as a directory for more than one business. 

 

(w) Roof signs.  Roof signs shall not project above the roof peak (this includes mounting brackets). 

 

(x) Sidewalk signs. 

 

(1) All signs must be self-supporting and not be attached to any other structure or object. 

 

(2) One (1) sign of this type will be allowed per place of ground level business. 

 

(3) The maximum width of a sign shall be two and one half (2.5) feet, a minimum height of 

three (3) feet and a maximum height of four (4) feet. 

 

(4) The sign support and base shall not extend beyond the edge of the sign. 



Page 21 of 24 
 

 

(5) A sign shall be placed only where a minimum width of three (3) feet for pedestrian 

movements can be maintained. 

 

(6) This type of sign is allowed only within a business district. 

 

(7) Signs may be placed on the sidewalk only during hours of operation and must be stored 

inside the building during non-business hours. 

 

(8) Signs may be used for on-premise advertising only. 

 

(9) Signs shall not be illuminated. 

 

(10) Streamers, flags or banners shall not be attached to the sign or use the sign as an anchor. 

 

(y) Temporary signs. 

 

(1) Temporary signs are not to be used as a substitute for erecting a permanent sign.  

Temporary signs are to be used for short duration events that do not occur on a regular 

basis.  Activities that repeatedly occur throughout the year are to be publicized using 

permanent signage. 

 

(2) Use of off-premise temporary signs is limited to a maximum of 30 days per event, 

activity or function.  Off-premise temporary or portable signs may be used only in places 

where they meet all city, state and federal regulations.  Temporary or portable off-

premise signs are treated the same as permanent billboards under federal law 

administered by NDDOT.  Signs proposed to be located along federal aid routes that are 

impacted by the federal rules regulating off-premise signs must receive written 

permission from NDDOT.  A copy of the written permission from NDDOT must be 

presented to the city building department prior to sign installation.  Off-premise 

temporary or portable signs can be no closer together than 100 feet along a state highway. 

 

(3) The owner of a property where a temporary or portable off-premise sign is to be placed 

must provide the city with written permission for the placement of the sign prior to 

installation of the sign. 

 

(4) Except for the requirements for construction, finance and real estate signs and political 

signs; each type of temporary sign is limited to two hundred forty (240) days per calendar 

year per property. 

 

(5) Banner signs are limited to three (3) per property.  The total area of all banner signs on a 

wall may not be larger than twenty percent (20%) of the wall surface area of the wall to 

which they are attached or which they are in front of.   

 

(6) Construction, finance and real estate signs. 

 

a. Construction and finance signs may be displayed during the duration of the 

construction phase of a project and must be removed within thirty (30) days after 

receiving a certificate of occupancy. 

 



Page 22 of 24 
 

b. Signs indicating that an individual lot is for sale, sold, for rent or for lease are 

limited to sixteen (16) square feet in size. 

 

c. Signs indicating that a large, undeveloped property is for sale are limited to forty-

eight (48) square feet in size unless a larger size is approved by the city engineer 

for a specific parcel. 

 

d. Open house signs advertising a one or two day event that are no greater than 

thirty-six (36) inches in height and in place for less than forty-eight (48) hours 

may be placed in the public right-of-way provided that they are located at least 

one (1) foot behind the back of curb or three feet off the pavement where no curb 

exists.  Other types of real estate signs or signs that will be in place for more than 

forty-eight (48) hours may be authorized by city commission to be placed in the 

public right-of-way. 

 

e. Once a property has been sold, the sale sign must be removed within thirty (30) 

days after closing. 

 

f. Parade of Homes signs shall conform to the following requirements. 

 

1. The signs shall be placed at least one (1) foot behind the back of curb or 

three (3) feet off the edge of pavement where no curb exists. 

 

2. The signs may be in place for no more than twelve (12) days twice each 

year. 

 

3. The signs shall be located no closer than one hundred (100) feet to an 

intersection as measured from the pedestrian crossing or stop bar. 

 

4. The signs shall not be attached to trees, traffic control signs, traffic signal 

poles or street light poles. 

 

5. No ribbons, balloons, streamers, lighting or ancillary devises may be 

attached to the signs. 

 

6. The Bismarck-Mandan Home Builders Association shall be responsible 

for any costs incurred during installation or removal of the signs. 

 

7. The signs shall not be higher than three (3) feet above the road surface. 

  

(7) Flag signs are limited to one (1) per twenty (20) feet of lot frontage with a limit of five 

(5) per lot. 

 

(8) Political signs.  Political signs shall follow North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) 

regulations. 

 

(9) Portable signs. 

 

a. All companies that rent portable signs to customers within the City must be 

licensed with the City and carry liability insurance in a form and amount 



Page 23 of 24 
 

specified by the city.  Each rental sign shall have the rental companies name and 

phone number clearly visible on the sign. 

 

b. All portable signs and sign lettering shall be properly maintained, well-kept and 

in good condition.  The city may order removal of a sign that is not advertising a 

current event or is not being maintained in good condition. 

 

c. No ribbons, balloons, streamers, lighting or ancillary devises may be attached to 

any portable sign. 

 

d. Each property is allowed one (1) portable sign.  Larger properties may have more 

than one (1) portable sign as long as they are placed a minimum of one hundred 

fifty-five (155) feet apart. 

 

e. Maximum square footage for a portable sign shall be sixty-four (64) square feet 

and maximum height shall be eight (8) feet. The portable sign shall not be 

illuminated or electronic. 

 

f. The Owner of each rented portable sign shall submit a monthly report to the 

Building Department showing days in use and the location of the sign. 

 

g. “Floppy guy” signs are a type of portable sign. 

 

 (10) Streamers may be strung on a line or cord no longer than three (3) times the width of the 

lot. 

 

(z) Wall signs. 

 

(1) Wall signs shall be securely fastened to the wall of a building by its supporting structure. 

 

(2) Wall signs placed against exterior walls of buildings and structures shall not extend more 

than twelve (12) inches from a wall’s surface.  The lowest edge of such sign shall be a 

minimum of eight (8) feet above grade unless a lower height is approved by MARC. 

 

(3) No combination of wall signs and supports shall exceed twenty (20) percent of the 

signable wall surface area up to a maximum of two hundred (200) square feet unless 

other limits are approved by the MARC. 

 

(4) Signs printed directly on exterior walls or surface of a building shall be prohibited. 

 

(5) No wall sign shall extend beyond the width of a building or project above the roof eave. 

 

(6) Wall signs advertising products or services not related to the primary business shall be 

approved by the MARC. 

 

(7) Second floor businesses can utilize wall signs to advertise their establishments but must 

do so between floors and not below their floor. 

 

(8) A wall sign shall not obstruct the required door or exit window of any building nor shall 

it be attached to or placed on fire escapes. 

 



Page 24 of 24 
 

(aa) Window signs. 

 

(1) No paper or solid surface signs shall be permitted on a second floor window or above. 

 

(2) No window signs shall advertise or identify a business other than the one contained 

therein. 

 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-2 is reenacted and Sec. 105-1-15 is enacted as presented. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Timothy A. Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

James Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       ______________  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    ______________ 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of increased State Water 

Commission funds and amend agreement with AE2S to provide engineering 

services for Sunset Booster Station and Instrumentation and Controls (I&C) 

Improvements project. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: AE2S was selected to be the project’s engineer in 

July of this year. As a result of their early project investigation, it was realized at that 

time that to meet the demands in the growing northwest area of Mandan, the project 

scope would need to increase from what was originally thought last year when the State 

Water Commission (SWC) funding application was submitted. Because of the increase in 

scope, the city at that time decided to enter into agreement for preliminary design only 

with the intent to apply for that additional funding and perhaps amend the contract for 

complete design and bidding services if successful in receiving the additional SWC 

funds.  

 

Recently, the SWC sent the city a letter indicating that our request to increase the SWC 

funding share for this project has been granted. In order to accept the increase in funds, 

city commission must approve that as well. In step with receiving the additional SWC 

funds, agreeing to the amended amount and services with AE2S would be appropriate to 

move forward to final design and bid planned for early in 2017.      

 

This project has two main components. These components have enough relatability to 

warrant one project and take advantage of economies in bidding one larger project; 

1) The Sunset Booster Pump Station is located just off of Old Red Trail near 37
th

 St. 

NW and serves the northwest area of the City. This area is experiencing rapid 

growth increasing demands on the water system. There are periods of time when 

the pumps see high demands and it was determined an upgrade will ensure system 

demands are met.  Phase I will allow the pump station to meet all current peak 

flow demands from new growth areas. 

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 10, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Water Treatment Facility 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director; 

Duane Friesz, Facility Superintendent 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider accepting more SWC funding and 

amending agreement with AE2S 

 

  

Consent No. 2  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 2 of 12 

 

2) Growth in the Mandan system has resulted in new demands being placed on the 

distribution system. To provide better operational data and meet the growing 

service needs, the I&C system needs to be upgraded to match I&C upgrade 

include with the water treatment facility improvements   The water system 

demand increases have created the need for the pump stations, meters, and check 

points to operate in a more complex manner in order to accurately monitor and 

adjust system variables.  Five remote pump stations/reservoir sites currently are 

not properly equipped to handle the new system challenges spurred by growth. 

This project will upgrade their current I&C equipment and integrate it into the 

overall system. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Amendment #1 to SWC cost share amount. 

2. Cost share amount adjustment request 

3. Amendment #1 to engineering services agreement with AE2S 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The agreement for the design and bidding services for this project 

estimates the cost to be $112,000. The city will pay AE2S hourly up to that amount and 

will have to bring back to commission for approval if the amount is expected to exceed 

that. The SWC grant assumes the funding responsibility for 35% for design and 60% for 

construction and construction engineering. Therefore, the city’s share based on this 

estimate would be $112,000x65%=$72,800. This amount is budgeted out of the utility 

fund.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Planning and Design Coordination 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

review  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Accept additional SWC funding and the amendment with the 

AE2S agreement.  

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:    

1) I move to approve of Amendment #1 with the State Water Commission to accept 

the increased funding match.  

2) I move to approve of Amendment #1 with AE2S for final design and bidding 

tasks for the Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements 

project. 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 3 of 12 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 4 of 12 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 5 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 7 of 12 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 8 of 12 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 9 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 10 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 11 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider accepting more SWC funding and amending agreement with 

AE2S  

Page 12 of 12 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Mandan Police Department is requesting Board approval 

with accepting a traffic safety grant/contract from the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation, Safety Division.  The grant/contract provides reimbursement for overtime 

and mileage when working, Occupant Protection Enforcement, Impaired Driving 

Enforcement, Underage Drinking Enforcement, and Distracted Driving Enforcement.         

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In agreement with the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation Safety Division, the Mandan Police Department would receive 

reimbursement of cost in conducting extra patrols during state wide campaigns efforts to 

reducing the number vehicle crashes and also the number of people killed in motor 

vehicle crashes.  The grant/contract identifies reimbursement funding of $13,200, for 

overtime and mileage.  The grant/contract period is October 1, 2016 through September 

30, 2017.     

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Copy of contract.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $13,200 reimbursable funding to the city for cost with salaries and 

mileage.         

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Off -duty officers will be working overtime hours on a voluntary 

basis.    

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the acceptance of the Traffic Safety Grant/Contract 

#12161861, for $13,200.     

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 1, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Jason Ziegler 

PRESENTER: Chief Jason Ziegler 

SUBJECT: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety 

Contract from the North Dakota Department of 

Transportation, Safety Division 

 

  

Consent No. 3  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 2 of 33 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the acceptance of Traffic Safety Contract 

#12161861 from the North Dakota Department of Transportation, for the time period of 

October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017.   

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 3 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 4 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 5 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 6 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 7 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 8 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 9 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 10 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 11 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 12 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 13 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 14 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 15 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 16 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 17 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 18 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 19 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 20 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 21 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 22 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 23 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 24 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 25 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 26 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 27 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 28 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 29 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 30 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 31 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 32 of 33 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider the Acceptance of a Traffic Safety Contract from the North Dakota 

Department of Transportation, Safety Division 

Page 33 of 33 

 

 
 



 

 

   

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of widened utility and stormwater 

easement in Lakewood 9
th

 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The city was approached by the developer’s 

engineer to accept a wider easement that facilitates both private utility and storm sewer 

that was put in as part of the project and that the city will maintain at project completion. 

At the time of the original plat, it was thought that the original 20 feet would be 

sufficient, but with the added 10 feet, that would only serve to improve our ability to 

access should we need to for maintenance.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Easement Exhibit 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: None    

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Improved access for Public Works 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

review  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Accept the additional 10 foot easement width.   

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move to approve of the 10 foot wider easement.  

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 10, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Water Treatment Facility 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Lakewood 9
th

 utility and stormwater 

easement adjustment 

 

  

Consent No. 4  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Lakewood 9
th

 utility and stormwater easement adjustment  

Page 2 of 2 

 

 



IConsent NO.5 I
LocAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OFATIORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 17926 (0812016)

Type: D Local Permit *[RICharityLocal Permit
Permit Number

2016-59
Nameof Organization Date(s)Authorized (Read instruction 2)

Benefit For Nancv Miller
ContactPerson BusinessPhone Number 11/18/2016 to 11/18/2016

Mackenzie Milfer Beginning Ending-
Mailing Address City IState Zip Code

_ .. Mandan ND 58554-0000
Site Name SiteAddress

MandanEaules 100 14th St Ne
City State IZIPCode County

Mandan ND 58554 Morton
Checkthe Game(s) Authorized: • Poker, Twenty-one, andPaddlewheels may be Conducted only by a CharityLocalPermit.

o Bingo lEI Raffle o RaffleBoard o CalendarRaffle o SportsPool o Poker* o Twenty-one' o Paddlewheels*

Restriction: If conducting a raffle.provide
the dateof the drawing(s):

Requirement: For a "Charity local Permit,"the organizationmust file a "Reporton a CharityLocalPermit"with the city or countyaudltor.lillil Officeof
AttorneyGeneralwithin30 daysof the event.

Date Signature of: lEI~~or
......

Auditor PrintedNameofCityor CountyAuditor AuditorTelephone Number

11/4/2016 -itA! ff ) MatthewGraves (mpd) (701) 667~3250

Localgoverning bodies Ple;se r;Vi;~ infor~on"t'o considerbef~e approvinga localpermitbelow.

Localgoverning bodies pleasesee the Instructions on the backsideof this form on how to complete the permit.

Organizations conduclionga raffle or calendar raffie please read "Information Required to bePreprinted on a Standard Raffle ncket" on the
backsideof this farm.

_ ........_-----..._-------------------------...:.-_----_......_------------
cut along lhls line

Beforeapprovinga local permit or charity local permit the localgoverning body shouldreviewNorthDakota Century
Code 53-06.1-03(3)(a) which states:

3. A licensed organization or organization that has a permit shall conductgames as follows:

a. Only one licensed organization or organization that has a permitmay conductgamesat an authorized site
on a day, exceptthat a raffle may be conducted for a specialoccasion by anotherlicensed organization or
organization that has a permit when one of these conditions is met:

(1) When the area for the raffle is physicaltyseparated from the area wheregamesare conducted by the
regular organization.

(2) Upon requestof the reqular organization and with the approval of the alcoholicbeverage establishment,
the regular organization's license or permit is suspended for that specific time of day by the attorney
general.

Also, please review North DakotaAdministrativeCode 99-01.3-01-05 (Permits) for the administrative rulesgoverning
permits. These rules may be viewed on the North DakotaAttorneyGeneral's websiteat www.ag.nd.gov - Gaming/Rules
and Regulations/Gaming Administrative Rules.



Zip CodeSlate

D~te s)of Activity

~;~~·i:i~fr

CIty

APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT rl/ I[, f rJ[7J~
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL t"/- -r \lj,~ "
SFN 9338 (9-2009) CCl..-

Application for: 0 Local Permit *~haritY Local Permit (one event per year)

Check Ihe Garne(s) to be Conducted: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charily Local Permit.

o Bingo~affle DCalendar Raffie oSports Pool 0 Poker· 0 Twenty-one· o Paddlewheels *

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AW RD P.
,L<-

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Valueof
ri

:I3S0D
'3DO

'J

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of
Prize

Total: ~Tt$~GCrD

Intended uses of gaming proceeds:Nan C\J Mi.LtttS" mec\jcell f)lPCX1SQ~
Does the organization presently have a state gaming fiCenSe?~No 0 Yes • If "Yes," the organization is not eligible for a local permit or charity local
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General aI1-800-326-9240.

Has the organlzalion received a charily local permit from this or another city or countyfor the fiscal year Ju[y 1 through June30?'K1'No 0 Yes - If "Yes,'
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit.

Has the organizalion received a local permit from Ihis or another cityor county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? .~ No 0 Yes - jf "Yes,"
indicate the tolal value of all prizes previously awarded: $ . Thisamount is part of the totalprizelimitof$12,OOO peryear.

ntle Business Phone Number.
" -



Consent No 6 - Added
11/15/16LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT

NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION,.' SFN 17926 (08/2016)'~;-. )Y Permit Number'-~

Type: o Local Permit *0 Charity Local Permit
2016-61

NameofOrqenlzetton Daters) Authorized (Read instruction 2)
TripleH Miniature Horse Rescue

Contact Person Business Phone Number 11/15/2016 to 11/21/2016
Alison Smith Beginning Ending

Mailing Address City IState ZipCode

- Bismarck NO 58502-4125
SiteName SiteAddress

Station West BarAnd GrlU 412 West MainStreet
City Slate IZIP Code Counly

Mandan NO 58554 Morton
Check theGame(s) Authorized: ~ Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddfewheels maybe Conducted only bya Charity Local Permit.

o Bingo o Raffle o RaffleBoard 0 Calendar Raffle o Sports Pool o Poker' D Twenty-one' D PaddlewheelS'

Restriction; If conducting a raffle, provide
theelate of the drawlng(s):

Requirement: Fora "CharityLocal Permit," the organization must lite a "Report ona Charity Local Permit" with thecity or county auditorw..d Office of
Attorney General within 30 daysof the event.

Date SiP2~mU'~YAUdiIOr Printed Nameof Cityor County Auditor Audltcr Telephone Number

11/14/2016 Matthew J. Graves (701) 667-3250..
Local governing bodies please review information to consider before approving a local permit below.

Locar governing bodies please see the instructions onthe backside ofthts form on howto complete thepermit.

Organizations conducuonq a raffle orcalendar raffle pleaseread"Information Required tobe Preprinted ona Standard Raffle Ticket" on the
backside of lhis form.

cutalong lhis line

Before approving a iocal permit or charity iocal permit the iocal governing body should review North Dakota Century
Code 53-06.1-03(3)(a) which states:

3. A licensed organization or organization that has a permit shall conduct games as follows:

a. Only one licensed organization or organization that has a permit may conduct games at an authorized site
on a day, except that a raffie may be conducted for a special occasion by another licensed organization or
organization that has a permit when one of these conditions is met:

(1) When the area for the raffle is physically separated from the area where games are conducted by the
reguiar organization.

(2) Upon request of the regular organization and with the approval of the alcoholic beverage establishment,
the regular organization's license or permit is suspended for that specific time of day by the attorney
general.

Also, please review North Dakota Administrative Code 99-01.3-01-05 (Permits) for the administrative rules governing
permits. These rules may be viewed on the North Dakota Attorney General's website at www.ag.nd.gov - Gaming/Ruies
and Regulations/Gaming Administrative Rules.



APPLICATION FORA LOCAL PERMIT ORCHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9338 (08/2016)

Application for: 1m Local Permit *DCharity Local Permit (oneevenlperyear)

NameofNon-pront Organization Dato(s) ofActivity Fora raffle, provide drawing date(s}:

Triple H Miniature HorseRescue to 11"21·16

Person Responsible fortheGaming Operation andDisbursement ofNet Income Title Buslness Phone Number

Alison Smith Ex. Director
Business Address City Stale ZipCode

Mandan ND 58554
~iialITii9"Address (ifdifferent) City State Zip Coda

Bismarck ND 58502
Nameo{SiteWhereGame(s) will beConducted Site Address

Station WestBarand Grill 412 WestMain. St
City State IZIP Code County

Mandan ND 58554 Morton
Check theGameis) tobe Conducted: ~ Poker, Twenty-one, am!Paddfewheels maybe Conducted only bya Charity Local Permit.

o Bingo 1m Raffle 0 Raffle Board o Calendar Rame o Sports Pool o Poker' D Twenty-one' o Paddlewheels "

-
DESCRIPTION AND RETAILVALUE OF PRIZESTO BE AWARDED

Game Type Descrlptlon ofPrize RetailValue of Game Type Descrlptlon ofPrize Retail Value of
p,;,~ P"7~

Chinese Raffle Prize baskets 25·100
.

.
(Umit $12,000 poryoar)

Total: $

Intendeduses of gamingproceeds: Care for KittyCily cats at the catshelter at Triple H Miniature Horse Rescue

Does the organization presently have a slategaming license?~ No 0 Yes u If "Yes," the orqanizatton Isnot eligible for a local permlt orcharity focal
permitandshould call the Offlce ofAllorney General at1"800-326-9240.

Has the oroaneanon received a charity local permit from thIs Ot another city orCO~fn(Y for thefiscal yearJuly 1lhrough June 307 &I No 0 Yes - If"Yes,"
the organization does not qualify for a local permit orcharity local permit

Hasthe organization received a local permit from this oranother city orcounty for the nscaf year July 1 through June 3D? 0 No I!J Yes w [("Yes,'1
indicate thetotal value ofallprizes previously awarded: $ 2064.00. Tnts amount ispartofthe rotal prize limit of$'12,000 per year.

Slgnature..Pf~nization~ExecutivQ Official
A7.A1: ~.r ': ITille

I Ex. Director
____.:=Isuslness Phone NUmber_J



A single cash prize cannot exceed $6,000.

The retail value of a merchandise prize cannot exceed $6,000.

The total of all cash prizes and retail value of all merchandise prizes for all games cannot exceed $12,000 per year.

If the value of the planned cash and merchandise prizes exceeds $12,000, the organization must reduce the prizes to this limit or
apply for a state license with the Office of Attorney General.

LOCAL PERMIT AND CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT:

The major differences between a local permit and charity local permit are:

Local Permit

Number of events per year

Mustfilean information report

May pay employees compensation

Mustusechips as wagers

Use of netincome

Games allowed

Limited by prizes

No

Yes

No

Unrestricted

Bingo

Raffles
Sports pools

Charity Local Permit

One

Yes

No

Yes

Restricted

Bingo
Raffles

Sports pools

Poker
Twenty-one

Paddlewheels

Compared to a "Local Permit," an organization with a "Charity Local permit" may conduct 3 more game types. but is restricted to 1 event per
year, must file an information report with the city or county and Office ofAttorney General, and disburse net income to eligible uses. These
uses are described by Norlh Dakota Cenlury Code § 53-06.'1-11.1(2) and North DakotaAdministrative Code § 99-01,3-14-02, Refer to the
backside ofthe "Report ona Charity Local Permit" form fora general list ofeligible uses.

For a Charity Local Permit, one method to ensure that the total of all cash prizes and retail value of all merchandise prizes do not exceed
$12,000 is tocharge each player a standard amount at the startof the event fora certain number or value ofchips. If a player loses allof the
player's chips, the player may re-buy chips. The player would play games and, at the end of the event, the organization would auction
merchandise prizes to the players. The playerwho bid thehighest number or value of chips for a prize would win that prize. Forthose players
who havechips but did notsuccessfully bid on a prize, the organization may redeem the chips for a predetermined cash value per chip. For
this method, the value of the players' chips redeemed for cash isnota prize.

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price;
4, Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or six thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient space
on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty-five dollars, an organization may state the total
number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

6. For an organization that has a permit, print the authorizing city or county and permit number;
6. A statement thata person Isor is notrequired to be present at a drawing towin;
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and lime of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is or

is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least "."

years of age to buy a ticket or win a prize;
11, A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won and

odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that Is limited to the lesser of the market valueof the animal or six thousand dollars.



Estimate

SCOTT D. BERGER CONSTRUCTION
Scott O. Berger
P.O. Box 9
Mandan NO 58554

Mandan Library
609 West Main Str.
Mandan NO 58554

Work to Be Performed:

(\/6::113
tUf~~
-11/;s-/4

September 25,2016

Remove & replace two west window units and steel door. These will be replace with
two Pella Pro Line Window units and an insullated Pella outswing steel door.
We will re-use the emergency crash bar hardware.

Exterior surfaces shall be wrapped with a metal cladding. The flat surfaces shall be
covered with steel vertical siding to provide maintenance free exterior. We will do our
best to match the green colors.

The interior shall be sheetrocked where required, taped/textoned and painted.

Cost:

Respectfully Submitted:

~
., ri/\ '>',""

&<,,-_J c.)e{:jJ;-C
Scott O. Berger

$10,810.90



PROPOSAL
~1_ltrr,fi(~I,iil

10/10/2016 3618

City of Mandan - Library Building
Attention: Doug Lalim
609 West Main Street
Mandan NO 58554

'.. ':)(;;,,., Building WindowlDoor Project - 609 W Main Street, Mandan NO 58554
To !n:·;tude: Removal & disposal of existing windows &. door. Reframe window opening to
r9;Sf) winoow to 18" off floor & to resize opening for new windows. Provide & install new
door & windows as per Pella proposal, Wrap existing wood buck on opening with metal
to match windows & door. Install flashing around windows & door. Provide & install
tyvek wrap on exterior. Provide & install Hardie Artisan v-groove siding on exterior.
fbrdle to be painted to match door & window Tape, texture & paint interior walls as
ilecessary due to frame changes. Provide & instal! new 2 1/4" paint grade Colonial
<;,1,:il1g to inside of door & windows. Paint ,,'m to mateo .ntonor of window & door.
Provide & install panic hardware to interior Of coer :'rnal cleanup & trash removal are
included.

"raming Group - Permit, Framing Materials. Frami"g Labor

Fuush Group - Finish Materials, Tape & Texture. p;.dnt. I'inisl' Labor, Clean-up, Trash
R.;.-:moval

,"e!la Windows & Door
Hardie Fiber Cement Siding

3,144.00

2,74700

4,279.00
1,55700

$11,727.00



LEINGANGI
WINDOWS2601 Twin City Drive 7§JE CEI'!~Mandan, NO 58554 RETAIL SALES CONTRACT

701-663-7966 • 1-800-732-7120
Fax: 701-667-0865 Since 1917

www.leingang.com
Mandan' Bismarck

Dickinson' Minot· Pierre
(Name and Business Address of SELLER - Hereinafter referred to as SELLER)

sells and, S;ily of Mandan Morton Mandan Public Library .__ , hereby

(Names and Mailing Address of BUYERS - Hereinafter referred to as BUYER)

purchases from the SELLER the following described GOODS and SERVICES: (AUproducts will have the following specifications unless otherwise noted.)

Furnish and Install WINDOWS & DOORS: Composite or PVC vinyl windows, with insulated glass, standard lock system and screens on
venting units. INindow(s) will be insulated with niqh-performance expanding foam and sealed into opening with silicone caulk.
Gut-out: ~Yes -' No Existing frame will be removed completely and new window or patio door installed into rough opening.

New Interior Trim: il Yes .J No .J Unfinished (wi paper) al Finished Color: TSO _._-_._-_.__._-
-' 2W' Ranch .J 21/.1" Colonial ill 3 l,I:l " Colonial iii Oak .JOther

._--~~--~----

New Bnckmold: m:I Yes -I No .J Vinyl @J Wood wrapped with metal ..J NailFin Color T_SO .. ~~..".- _.~--~---_._--

Retrofit; ..J Yes %'ill No Existing frame will remain in opening, sashes removed and new window set into existing frame.
Cover Existing Brtckmold with Metal: .J Yes WjNo -' No Mar ..J Smooth -,PVC Color -_._------

Window Color: Outside: Custom Green Inside: White Vent Stops: -' Yes :ml No
Glass Options: ~ Double Pane :ml LaINE :iI Argon Gas -' Triple Pane .J 2~LowE .J Argon .J Krypton Gas
Spacer Options: -a Heat Seal" Screen: ThruVison PLUS -' 1/2 ..JFull Hardware Color: ss Standard -'
Grids: .J Yes .a rcc .J Colonial .J Craftsman .J Perimeter .J Flat .J Contoured Color In Out

900 Series Insulated C0IT!p.2.:?ite Series ._-
(3) Fixed Picture Uf"!its, I with Ternpered ~~f?~..QL??.§...ne~to Entry- Door. West Wall of I ibrary

" .._-_.,._._~~._-----~---

('1) Therrna Tru O~ltswing Entry Door system. inside colored in white and exterior in rso green. ._-
Re-Use existing panic door hardware. -

~ _._..._~._---
-~--

-_...~~_...- ._.~.~.---- -- " ....~-"'-~----_._~...~_._,..__.._.- .._-_..._._. ._-----_.- - --_..__.

- ---_._-_._~- ---_._---_._._-_.-

-----_.._-_._---- ._-_..

._-------------
---~...__._-_.._...-

._..~-_..~-"._.._..._-_.~ .....__..~.__._--~.-.---'-- .__.- -- .'"-~~-~-----_."'-"'------ --_..~._----_.__.._--_.._-
_.~ ._--~_.__._-- .._. --_.....~.

--- ._-- ._-----_.__._" -----
---..__._-----~._-----_._--_._. ._---------------_..~-_.._.~.._------_._.,
~.i.~~_9_~~El_'_1_~?g,~'l§'--_,==___=______o__-o-_=_.:E!'j~.~~.~ubj~£~"~£_~hange --.... days from bid date. :Cash Price. Credit Card will incur<13% convenience charge.

Home Phone --I
Street Mam SI

Gel! Phone Irotal s .9,..f.7:5. 0_0___ ...'".-..~~- .- ... --
Wor!< Phone 661 '3230 Douq t.alirn I

City !Yl~~~j~~~.'...!\ID 5855i..___._._.___.._______ _ .._ Stale ~._~_...~. Zip ...•.._.._.._......__........ IDownP,,1yrnent :3 .._-_•.-
--~.._- -"-'~.'

_..._-

!=~:~~.;~_=~::_::~=~~:.-._=.__:.~._"~_::=._::;_.:._._:::._:_::::::_.__::==:.::.:.::=,==----...:::'::=:==:=::==::=-;::::::.~_.~.::_;:.-:.==:::_....:::::.-..:.=====_~_.__._::_.~:~~~~~~~r_:~~~_:~~r~_~?_:. -- .._-,.~~------_.. ~.._.
..... ....-.-..-~.._.._--~.~ -_.__ .

:\JJA Guyer ackoowreoqes structurebeing renovated was built in gqrr,l~,l.c:r,~~?.I. ..E..!:?f?_t!_ny.
··ii';;i;·ani!i;'~·

-
'-'j;;ji;;;f'~!'l',)

_._.._..Buyeracknowleoqes receipt of the Notice to Buyer and important nuorrnation on the back side of this contract.

•._.
'''i;;;i;:iFTe'~~ -

.-..._. Buyer acknowlecrqes receipt of two copies of the Notice of Cancellation and further ackoowledqes that Seller orallymforrned
BUYf~r(sl of Buyers RIGHT TO CANCEL the cor-tract.

KEEP A COpy OF THIS CONTRACT TO PROTECT YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS Executed by both SlIyer and Seller this ~~ .~_~._ day of -...." .......... _.......20 .. _.
'1 112% per month late payment fee Will be charged Eachbuyerherebyacknowledqes receipt of a fully

to ~Il PAST DUF.ACCOUNTS. completedcopy of this RETAIL SALES CONTRACT.

_.._...~ ........._..._...-.._--------_. ...--- ..-"._-_.__._.._~._-_..._..
ACCEPTED BY SELLER IB\JYEi~)

~?_C~r::_c.~:?rLI-.~_l;~i_~.Q§_00___ ..__.. _-.._. ___ ._ ._ ..___.. ,," __..,..__ ,_-.._....
-i8Gy6~)

.._-----
(NiHIORJZF.O REPRE$ENrArl'tE)

:~l Yes ...J No Permission to use horne for advertrsinq purposes.



SIDING
RETAIL SALES CONTRACT

Since '977
Mandan· Bismarck

Dickinson Q Minot 9 Pierre
(Name and Business Address of SELLER· Hereinafter referred to as SEl.LER)

2601 Twin City Drive
Mandan, NO 58554

70-1-663-7966 • 1-800-732-7120
Fax: 701-667-0865

www.leingang.com

. herebyMorlon Mandan Publicof Mandan-.:::.:_ ..._- _ ..sells and.
(Names and Address of BUYERS - Hereinafter referred to as BUYER)

ourcnases from the SELL.ER the followinq described GOODS and SERVICES:

Siding: ~Yes ..J1'10 Cover wood wall of' .:.J House _I Attached Garage -I Detached Garaqe -I Shed W}Other

-l Vinyl '%JI Steel .J Seamless Steel .J Other .,.." ._._... ~~ ~~ ._.. COLOR: .~~ .___ __. __ .._" ..'_._.

Brand JBO .__..__._._.._~_ Slyle _ __ _ __ .._ Exposure _-?~).<:!~_~_.~:._~~~~_t.~:!~.__ _,,' Direction _Y::~~~~~_~_~E~ ~__"__.
-I TearOff EXisting SI(ling ]\1 Cover'existing Siding NO rES: ~(V0St ~~II indicated ,,~Iow ~~~__~ _

Includes color -oetcbecr accessories. .t-cbanne! (mitetE!c!), Fmish tr.rn. One-o.ece corner posts. Steel slart~~1 strip, Silicone caulk il()(l!l(! ail openinqs

Master Mounts/vents: -ij Yes

.J Center Vent ..J Non-vent Brand/StyleAluminum Soffit: COLOR:

1"1.1. SE;Ai'11S WIU.. BE 'IAPEO

COLOR: VV~~~..~.~~~~~lCXI.. _.__._....... ~ _

COLOR:

&1 rvvek-I 1/2" F08m-13/8"' Foam

StyleQTY

.J 114"' FrXlIT!

m!-lNo

.J Yes ,?Ii No

ml Yes -I No

-I Yes

Insulation:

Gable Vent:

Fascia: .J Yes ..J No ~ Aluminum .J Steel -I Preformed .J Custom Formed

Brand/Style COLOR: .

Fascia to be screwed Oil, 1101 nailed. Check old vents for insulation tailing in, Heotaoarotted fasciaas needed.

Coverall: WnlP '.VItil custom ,'O'meci aluminum. Brand/Style COLOR:

.J Reuse Existinqweatherstrippinq:

Doors Windows Overhead Oaraqe Doors Patio Doors Door Sioeute

Roof Edge: .J Yes i@jNo toston new::;r G:lO exeunq. Gutter Apron: -I Yes 11 No Installnew0' ·:::<19 eXist:l1g COLOR:

with window installationwood surface on west W;~li1 ,)1

Additional Work:

as needed above and below window,

Zip

?~i-C:f~;~;~~k;;?:'l·-!g;~·:~:7~~j:i;~7.;:;;~;;~C3~{~~~;:r~~:~;~'~~ii~,j~'
,

i)f)! ]'2:30 Doug Lalim iTota!

!Down ·.)<.IYIT10I1(
--I

.___ _ !Due on Completion $ __.. ~'"~_. .. .__
.----..,~.•.-_.._.__.._-~._._.._-- ._....._.~.- ..._"'.,_..--~_.-

Cell PhOllr;l

'Nori< Phone

Stale

Street ivl:Jin St

City~~.I.~l~~~_~_:,_ :\In '513.5:54

1\1/(\ ·guver· acxoowreoqes structure bemq renovated was ouut in Commercral

_Buyer acknowteoqes receipt of tile Notice to Buyer and important information on tile back side of this contract.

Buyer ackoowlecqes receipt 01 11.'10 conies \)1 the Notice ot Cancellation 8rH] further ackoowrectoes that Seller I)l'allv 'niorrned
fJuyeris) of BU'/8"s RIGHT TO CANCEL Ul~) cootract.

KEEP J.\ COPY OF THIS CONTRACT TO PROTECT YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS

'l'h% per month late payment 'ee will be charqecr
10 all PAST DUE ACCOUNTS.

Executed by both Buyer and Seller this __,.__.__._.day of _.~,_~..

Each buyer hereby acknovneoqes receipt of a luJly
completed copy of ttus ~\ETAll. SALES CONTFlI~CT.

20

ACCEPTED BY SELLER

Brandon .(,:;in9anu
,----..,-..-. -(;\lJ'I-;:;()';lii.~l)-iil;i-;~ii:8E"Tr~\Tli.;q-·-- (OUY(;fl!

:%{J Yes ...I No Penrusslon 10 lise horne for advertrsinq purposes.



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Request approval from the City Commission to proceed with 

plans to have building repairs done to the West end of the library building. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: At the October 24 Library Board of Trustees 

meeting, a motion was made to accept a bid from Scott Berger Construction for 

replacement of the two windows on the West end of the building. The motion included an 

expansion of the bid to include repairing the deck on the West end. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Estimate from Scott Berger Construction for replacement of 

windows and emergency door on West end of library building. Estimate from Scott 

Berger Construction for repairs to deck on West end of library building. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION: The library should proceed with plans for repairs to the West 

end of the building.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  

1. I move to approve the library plans for repairs to the West end of the building. 

2. I move to approve the library seeking bids for windows on the North and South sides 

of the building.  

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/15/16 

PREPARATION DATE: 11/08/16 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Library 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Sarah Warneke 

PRESENTER: Sarah Warneke 

SUBJECT: Building Repairs 

 

  

New Business No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider approval to proceed with plans to have building repairs done to the 

West end of the library building. 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider approval to proceed with plans to have building repairs done to the 

West end of the library building. 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider approval to proceed with plans to have building repairs done to the 

West end of the library building. 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Consider approval to proceed with plans to have building repairs done to the 

West end of the library building. 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Update the commission on recycling numbers and present 

new posters on what to recycle and what not to recycle. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: As of October 31, Dakota Sanitation has collected 

over 856 tons of recyclables. We are seeing about 50% weekly participation through the 

first 10 months, but only 695 residents have never participated in the program and our 

average monthly participation has been 89.74%. 

In November residents will receive two new recycling posters in their utility bill 

showing the top 10 items to recycle and the top 6 items not to recycle.  All the items on 

the not to recycle list are important, a couple of the biggest items we are seeing in our 

program are shredded paper and used fireworks.  Shredded paper is quite the nuisance at 

the recycling center as it contaminates most of the other separated recyclables and has to 

be removed by hand and thrown in the garbage and taken to the landfill.  Shredded paper 

is recyclable, but not in the single stream system.  Shredded paper can go to the Trans 

Trash site at 1800 40
th

 Ave SE and put in the regular paper bin.  Used fireworks are not 

recyclable items and need to be disposed of in the regular garbage receptacle.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: Top 10 items to recycle, Top 6 items not to recycle 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A  

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION: No motion needed. Information item only. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: None. 

 

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 9, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Update on Recycling 

 

  

New Business #4 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Update on Recycling 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Update on Recycling 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

   

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of selection of Ulteig Engineers 

for engineering services for the McKenzie Drive Reconstruction project. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The pavement at McKenzie Drive between the 

west side on and off ramps of Expressway and 46
th

 Avenue SE is in poor condition and 

degrading rapidly. Additionally, the growth in that area of town has continued to be more 

accelerated than any other parts of town. Considering the growth and including the 

opening of the YMCA scheduled for 2017 adjacent to that intersection and we believe 

that traffic control elements will be needed sooner rather than later. 

 

The city has been approved by the NDDOT within their Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP) to reconstruct McKenzie Drive between the west side ramps and 46
th

 

Avenue as well as install traffic control at the 46
th

 Avenue intersection. This project is 

eligible for approximately 80% federal funding, capped at $800,000 as administered 

through the NDDOT. As such, the project must go through the NDDOT bidding process, 

requiring the plans and specifications to adhere to their guidelines. In order to ensure that 

proper procedures are followed, the engineering department requested hiring a consulting 

firm to design these projects.  On September 20
th

, the City Commission approved the 

engineering department advertising for RFP for engineering services for this project.   

 

By October 21
st
 we received eight proposals.  Out of those eight proposals, we selected 

four engineering firms to be interviewed on November 3
rd

 by a panel of five interviewers, 

four from city staff, and one from the local roads program at the DOT.  Ulteig was the 

selection chosen by the interviewers.  

 

As of November 10
th

, city staff is reviewing the agreement documents sent to us by 

Ulteig. We hope to have the final documents to city commission by the November 15
th

 

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 10, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: McKenzie Drive Project Consultant 

Selection 

 

  

New Business No. 5  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: McKenzie Drive Project Consultant Selection  

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

meeting with a recommendation to approve. The documents received are available upon 

request.     

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Final Rankings Sheet 

2. Project Vicinity Map 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The project would likely be paid for by using our typical allocation 

for Urban Roads Program projects. Local share would be 5% sales tax, 5% city-wide 

property tax, and 10% regional special assessments. For this project, the estimate is 

$1.3M and was based on traffic signals at the intersection. That would leave the local 

share at about $500,000. A round-about in lieu of traffic signals has been asked to be 

considered during planning. A round-about for this intersection is likely to increase 

construction costs.     

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Coordination with selected firm.  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

review  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Select Ulteig Engineers to provide engineering services for the 

McKenzie Drive reconstruction project.  

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move to; 

 

Option A: Agree to negotiate with Ulteig Engineers for engineering services for 

McKenzie Drive reconstruction. 

 

Or, if final agreement ready 

 

Option B: Enter into agreement with Ulteig Engineers for engineering services for 

McKenzie Drive reconstruction.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: McKenzie Drive Project Consultant Selection  

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: McKenzie Drive Project Consultant Selection  

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) coordinates 

funding requests for NDDOT TIP roadway projects. These are the projects that would be 

eligible for federal funding assistance because of their existing functional classification or 

future expected classification.  

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Later this month, staff will be meeting with MPO 

staff as well as other jurisdiction staff from within the MPO. Those being Morton 

County, the City of Bismarck, Burleigh County, and the City of Lincoln in addition to us. 

Ahead of those meetings, we are to submit our TIP project applications which will be 

discussed when we get together. The selection committee will them be tasked with 

ranking all jurisdiction projects and forwarding those rankings on to the DOT who needs 

them by the end of the year.   

 

The MPO needs to be assured that city leadership endorses the projects that our staff 

applies for. In response to contentious MPO meetings last year as well as a feeling within 

the committee of project oversaturation, the new guidance is that each jurisdiction is 

allowed a maximum of three submittals to the Urban Roads Program (URP).   

 

Below is a briefing of projects applied for in 2020 that could be forwarded to 2021. Also, 

attached is the project submittal list that was sent in for 2020 with a couple modifications. 

The strikethrough line denotes those projects that were successfully put in the TIP for 

2020 meaning that federal funds have been programmed for those projects in the year 

2020 and there will be no need to apply for them in 2021.  

 

The selection criteria tends to elevate projects that address existing system needs such as 

reconstruction projects such as our nearly completed Old Red Trail project. Secondly, the 

selection criteria tends to elevate a project that would relieve existing corridors’ 

congestion by building a new corridor that has the potential to do that. Ranking on the 

lower end as dictated by the selection criteria would be a new road on the fringe areas of 

MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: November 10, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Discussion of possible projects to submit to 

the DOT’s Transportation Improvements 

Program (TIP) for the year 2021 

 

  

New Business No. 6  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Discussion of possible projects to submit to the DOT’s Transportation 

Improvements Program (TIP) for the year 2021 

Page 2 of 5 

 

the city. For the URP, the city stands to receive approximately $1M annually for our 

needs. Based on this limited amount, having more than one project selected a year is 

unlikely. Some years, we are not successful in getting any as is true with other 

jurisdictions. For the Urban Regional part of the TIP, those projects are on the state 

highway system and we compete statewide for them to be included into the program.  

 

2020 Urban Roads Applications.  These projects are eligible for approximately 80% 

federal funding with about a 20% local match required. 

 

1. McKenzie Dr. SE from westbound off-ramp to and including intersection of 46
th

 Ave. 

SE 

  

The purpose of this project is to reconstruct this degraded section of McKenzie Dr. and to 

improve the functioning and safety of this intersection.  This is the primary route to the 

interstate system for the southeastern portion of the city.  There is rapid ongoing 

development occurring in this area.  In addition, the water park is just north of this 

intersection with a gas station across the street. A new YMCA facility is under 

construction adjacent to the intersection. During the summer there is heavy pedestrian 

and bicycle traffic nearby. 

 

2. Reconstruction of 8
th

 Ave. NW from Old Red Trail to 27
th

 St. NW  

 

The purpose of this project is to provide a viable alternate route to access new residential 

and commercial development as well as new middle school that allows traffic coming 

from the east to avoid the intersection of Sunset and Old Red Trail that is already heavily 

congested.  The existing roadway is not a full width section and is badly deteriorated. 

 

3. Extension of Sunset Drive NW 

 

The purpose of the project is to link the Sunset interchange on I-94 to the proposed 

northern bridge corridor at 38
th

 St. NW with a connection to 1806.  This project might be 

built in two phases depending on the pace of development.  Developer funding of a rural 

section road as a first phase is likely with the requested Urban Road Program funding a 

second phase upgrade to an urban arterial roadway section. 

 

4. Extension of Division Street east from 8
th

 Ave. NE to Mandan Avenue 

 

The purpose of this project is to provide an alternate route from the central portion of 

Mandan to I-94 in order to relieve congestion at Sunset.  In addition, when the Sunset 

interchange is rebuilt, this road will be a critical part of the required detour. 

 

5. Extension of Division Street west from Sunset to Lohstreter 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Discussion of possible projects to submit to the DOT’s Transportation 

Improvements Program (TIP) for the year 2021 

Page 3 of 5 

 

The purpose of this project is to provide an alternate route from Sunset to the west into a 

developing area.  All existing street options are narrow residential streets.  Once linked to 

Lohstreter this will provide an alternate route to the high school and Sunset from existing 

neighborhoods and planned new development. 

 

6. Extension of 8
th

 Ave. NW from 27
th

 St. to 38
th

 St. NW and then east to 1806 

 

The purpose of this project is to provide a link from 1806 to Sunset using the future 

bridge corridor.  A primary water transmission line is in this alignment.  This project may 

be built in two phases depending on the pace of new development.  Developer funding of 

a rural section road as a first phase is likely with the requested Urban Road Program 

funding a second phase upgrade to an urban arterial roadway section. 

 

7. Old Red Trail Reconstruction from 40
th

 Avenue NW to 56
th

 Avenue NW 

 

The purpose of this project is to reconstruct the roadway from west of 40
th

 Avenue, 

where the 2016 project is expected to end, to 56
th

 Avenue NW. It is expected that the 

reconstructed section will be urban with curb and gutter and storm sewer incorporated to 

47
th

 Avenue NW and that the reconstructed stretch between 47
th

 Avenue and 56
th

 Avenue 

will remain as a rural section.  

 

2020 Urban Regional Applications.  These projects are eligible for approximately 80% 

federal funding and 10% state funding with about a 10% local match required. 

 

8. Mandan Ave, ORT, and 1806 from Interstate to 27
th

 St. NW 

 

The purpose of this project is to improve traffic capacity and safety at the intersection of 

1806(Collins) and Old Red Trail as well as improvements to the stretch of Mandan Ave., 

Old Red Trail, and 1806 from the Mandan Avenue Interstate interchange to just north of 

the 27
th

 St. intersection. The main components would include; 1) Reconstruction of the 

roadway from the interchange to the Old Red Trail/Collins intersection 2) Reconfigured 

intersection to either be signalized or incorporate a round-about 3) Shoulder widening 

along 1806 north of the intersection and a northbound left turn lane onto 27
th

 Street.       

 

9.   Main Street Concrete Pavement Repair from 10
th

 Avenue West to Twin City Drive 

 

This project would consist of addressing problems with panels that have slumped or lifted 

over time due to movement in the soils under the panels and would make sure all the 

joints are well sealed. The repairs are spot repairs and only address those locations as 

needed.  

 

10.   Memorial Highway, Phase 1 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

Subject: Discussion of possible projects to submit to the DOT’s Transportation 

Improvements Program (TIP) for the year 2021 

Page 4 of 5 

 

This is a project that has been in the works for some time including a project study done 

in 2010 to guide. Because of the large size of the project, it is planned to break it into 3 

phases so it would more easily fit within the funds available during each funding cycle.  

Each phase may be done in 3 year increments so that the entire corridor from Main St. to 

46
th

 Ave. SE would take about 9 years once initiated. The project would include a full 

reconstruct of the roadway with a new typical section to implement safety and pedestrian 

friendly elements including a multi-use path. Also it would address drainage issues, and 

replace other utilities as necessary.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. 2020 Project Submittal List 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Local funds need to be identified as projects are selected and 

programmed in.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:   

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

review  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Submit the URP with the top two priorities being; 

1) Reconstruct 8
th

 Avenue NW from Old Red Trail to 27
th

 Street NW (East of 

Walmart) 

2) Build Division Street from 8
th

 Avenue NE to Mandan Avenue 

If the first two are agreed to, the third application allowed could be one of the developer 

driven projects at a fringe area of town or perhaps the reconstruction project picking up 

where the city left off on Old Red Trail west of 40
th

 Avenue.   

 

Submit the Urban Regional projects with the priorities being; 

1) Concrete Pavement Repair (Spot corrections) of Main Street from 10
th

 Avenue 

west to Twin City Drive.   

2) Reconstruct Memorial Highway, Phase I of a likely three phase approach.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   No motion needed. Intended for discussion at this time. 

Motion could be entertained to set priorities at this meeting or will plan to bring back to 

next.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

 
    

 



Page 1 of 21 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1241 amending and reenacting Sec. 105-1-2 

and adding and enacting Sec. 105-1-15 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles 

and signs 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1241 

 

An Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Sec. 105-1-2 and Add and Enact Sec. 105-1-15 of 

the Mandan Municipal Code related to fences, sight triangles and signs 

 

WHEREAS, the Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC) reviews and approves the 

number, design and location of signs, and 

 

WHEREAS, the sign guidelines that have been followed by the MARC are contained in a policy 

document, and 

  

WHEREAS, changes in sign technology and the proliferation of various types of signs require an 

upgrade to how the city regulates signs, and 

 

WHEREAS, it is difficult for the city to enforce a policy document used by a committee, and 

 

WHEREAS, many of the issues related to signs are not design issues but operation and 

maintenance issues, and 

 

WHEREAS, the requirements for a sight triangle apply to fences and vegetation as well as signs, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the requirements for a sight triangle that apply to fences need to be simplified and 

need to match the requirements that apply to signs, and 

 

WHEREAS, wording needs to be added addressing vegetation in a sight triangle, and 

  

WHEREAS, codifying sign requirements will allow the city to enforce the requirements. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Sec. 105-1-2 is amended to read. 

 

Sec. 105-1-2. - Supplementary provisions. 

  

(2) Projections into yards. 

 

a.  Steps, stairways, terraces and un-roofed porches or decks may extend into any 

minimum front or rear yard not more thanup to six (6) feet and into any 

minimum side yard not more thanup to four (4) feet, provided, however, that the 

floor thereof is no higher than that of the entrance to the building. 

 

b.  Chimneys may extend into any minimum yard not more thanup to two (2) feet. 

 

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 1 



Page 2 of 21 
 

c. Business signs may be located in the front yard setback.  If located within a sight 

triangle they must meet the dimensional requirements specified in Sec. 105-1-15 

(j) (3). 

 

d.  No such feature shall extend be located closer than three (3) feet to a lot line. 

 

(4) Fences and walls. Fences and walls may be placed in any yard setback area provided that 

the height of fences and walls adjacent to a street, alley or driveway shall be lowered to 

three (3) feet within a sight triangle as specified in Sec. 105-1-15 (j) (3).The building line 

and yard requirements of these regulations shall not apply to retaining walls or other 

walls or fences. Walls and fences must meet the following criteria: 

  

a. Fence on corner lot. No wall or fence shall extend more than three feet above the top of 

curb within the areas identified herein in order to provide a clear sight triangle for drivers 

entering an intersection. 

  

1. For each leg of an intersection that is uncontrolled, the clear sight triangle shall begin 25 

feet back from the property corner measured along the property line. 

  

2. Reserved. 

 

3. For each leg of an intersection that is stop sign controlled, the clear sight triangle shall 

begin at a point ten feet behind the stop sign or 20 feet from the adjoining street curb line, 

whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

  

4. For each leg of a traffic light controlled intersection, the clear sight triangle shall begin at 

a point ten feet behind the stop bar or 15 feet from the intersecting street curb line, 

whichever is less, as measured from each edge of the travel lane. 

 

 

(11) Vegetation within sight triangle. 

 

a. No new vegetation may be planted within a sight triangle for a street or alley 

unless it can be maintained such that it meets the requirements contained in Sec. 

105-1-15 (j) (3). 

 

b. If possible, existing vegetation located within a sight triangle for a street or alley 

shall be maintained such that it meets the requirements contained in Sec. 105-1-

15 (j) (3). 

 

c. Existing vegetation that cannot be maintained such that it meets the requirements 

of Sec. 105-1-15 (j) (3) need not be removed unless it creates an obvious danger 

to the ability of drivers and pedestrians to see past it on arterial or collector 

streets. 

  

 

Section 2.  Sec. 105-1-15 is created to read. 

 

Sec. 105-1-15. – Signs 

 



Page 3 of 21 
 

(a) Purpose.  The purpose of these sign requirements is to establish regulations that allow businesses 

to effectively convey information through signage while also maintaining a neat and orderly 

appearance.  These regulations apply to new signs installed after adoption of these regulations 

and existing signs that are rebuilt or relocated.  Permanent types of signs require a building permit 

and payment of the established fee.  Permanent signs must meet building and utility code 

requirements. 

 

(b) Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 

meaning. 

 

Awning means a roof-like structure that is supported by a metal or wood frame. 

 

Banner means a sign printed on lightweight, flexible material such as cloth, canvas or plastic that 

contains decorations and/or graphics or provides information to the public that is temporarily 

attached to a building or suspended between permanent poles or columns. 

 

Bench sign means a place for people to sit that also contains wording and/or graphics advertising 

a business or activity. 

 

Billboard means an off-premise sign constructed to industry standards that either advertises one 

business or contains an easily changeable face that can be rented by a business or multiple 

businesses for a period of time. 

 

Canopy means a structure or architectural element, other than an awning, that is made of metal or 

other noncombustible materials and is either freestanding or attached to a building. 

 

Canopy Sign means a message or identification which is affixed to or supported by a canopy. 

 

Directional means an on-premise sign using arrows and/or words to assist with internal 

circulation that may contain the name or logo of an establishment but no advertising copy. 

 

Display means a structure of any kind that is arranged, intended, designed or used as an 

advertisement, announcement or direction. 

 

Electronic or Changeable Copy means a portion of a sign that includes a screen or letters, 

characters, or graphics that are not permanently affixed to the structure, that can be modified from 

time to time either electronically or manually. 

 

Erect means to build, construct, attach, hang, place, suspend or affix. 

 

Facing or surface means the part of a sign upon, against, or through which the message is 

displayed or illustrated. 

 

Figurative wall mural means an illustration, diagram or design, not intended to sell a product or 

to advertise an establishment, that is used for aesthetic purposes or to enhance architectural 

features of a building. 

 

Flag sign means a loose section of fabric or other flexible material designed to move with the 

wind that is attached to a lightweight pole which is either pushed into the ground or into some 

form of support. 



Page 4 of 21 
 

 

Flashing means a pattern of changing light, pictures or wording for the purpose of drawing 

attention to the sign. 

 

Frame effect means a defining element on an electronic message center sign applied to a single 

frame or to transition from one frame to the next. 

 

Frame hold means the duration or interval of time during which each individual advertisement or 

message is displayed on any sign which is capable of sequentially displaying more than one 

advertisement or message on its display surface. 

 

Freestanding means a sign supported by uprights or braces placed in or upon the ground surface 

with no attachment to any building. 

 

Illuminated means a sign that has either internal or external lights or luminous tubes. 

 

Marquee means a hood or awning of permanent construction projecting from the wall of a 

building above an entrance and extending over a sidewalk. 

 

Marquee sign means a message attached to the face of a marquee. 

 

Monument means a freestanding sign where the entire bottom of the sign is affixed to a base on 

the ground that fully supports the sign. 

 

NIT means a unit of illuminative brightness equal to one candela (12.5 lumens) per square meter 

measured perpendicular to the rays of the source. 

 

Non-conforming means a sign that was lawfully erected prior to the effective date of the 

ordinance that adopted this article and that fails to conform to any of the provisions of this article. 

 

Obstructive means a sign erected with the purpose of hiding or covering from the view of the 

public an adjacent or nearby sign. 

 

Off-premise means a sign advertising a business, person, service or product which is located or 

conducted elsewhere than on the premises where the sign is located. 

 

On-premise means a sign advertising a business, service or major product located on that 

property. 

 

Permanent means a sign not falling under the definitions of temporary or portable. 

 

Pole means a free standing sign supported from the ground by one or two supports that are 

normally bare. 

 

Portable means a sign designed to be transported, including inflatable devices and signs carried 

or attached to a trailer or vehicle unless such trailer or vehicle is used in normal day-to-day 

operations of the business. 

 

Post and panel means a freestanding sign that does not have a base other than the support posts. 

 



Page 5 of 21 
 

Privilege panel means a permanent sign provided by the distributor or manufacturer of a product 

which utilizes a portion of the sign to advertise a specific product with the rest of the sign 

allocated to identifying business located at the property upon which the sign is placed. 

 

Projecting means a sign which is attached directly to a building wall and which extends more 

than twelve (12) inches from the face of the wall. 

 

Pylon means a free standing sign supported from the ground by one or two supports that are 

normally shrouded. 

 

Roof means a sign erected or constructed wholly upon or over the roof of a building. 

 

Sign means any written announcement, demonstration, display, illustration, or insignia used to 

advertise or promote the interests of any person when the same is displayed or placed out of doors 

in view of the general public and shall include every detached sign or billboard and every sign 

attached to or forming a component part of any building marquee, canopy, awning, street clock, 

pole, parked vehicle or other object whether stationary or moveable. 

 

Sign size means the message area of the sign without considering the structure of the sign. 

 

Signable wall surface area means the portion of a building wall that is free of windows, doors or 

major architectural details. 

 

Sight triangle means the area on each side of a driveway, the area at the intersection of two streets 

or the area at the intersection of an alley and a street that provides visibility along the street for 

drivers of vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists wishing to turn onto or cross the adjoining street or 

exit the property onto or across the street. 

 

Streamer means one or more small, typically triangular, flags attached to a line or cable that can 

be tied or otherwise attached to a portion of a permanent structure or sign post. 

 

Temporary means a sign that is designed to be used only for a limited period of time to advertise 

a special event or activity and includes banners, construction signs, finance signs, real estate 

signs, flag signs, political signs, portable signs and streamers. 

 

Wall mount means a sign which is affixed parallel to the exterior wall of a building and which 

does not project more than twelve (12) inches from the surface to which it is attached nor does it 

extend beyond the top of any parapet wall. 

 

Window means a sign which faces the exterior of the building and is applied in any manner to the 

window from either side. 

 

(c) Application for permit.  An application for issuance of a sign permit shall be submitted to the City 

of Mandan Building Department.  An application shall include all necessary drawings and 

specifications showing dimensions and materials to be used on the sign.  Required fees must be 

paid before an application will be processed.  Fees for processing and issuance of a sign permit 

shall be set by action of the board of city commissioners.  Actions requiring a permit include the 

following. 

 

(1) Alterations to an existing sign.  No sign shall be altered except in conformity with the 

provisions of this policy.  The changing of moveable parts of an approved sign that is 



Page 6 of 21 
 

designed for such changes, repainting the sign or reposting of display matter shall not be 

deemed an alteration provided the conditions of the original approval and the 

requirements of this section are not violated. 

 

(2) New signs. 

 

(3) Relocated signs.  A sign that is moved to another location on the same premise or to 

another premise. 

 

(d) Permit exemptions.  No permit shall be required for signs or outdoor display structures listed 

here.  However, not having to get a permit does not relieve the owner of the sign from 

responsibility for its erection and maintenance in a safe and conforming manner to the 

requirements contained in this section. 

 

(1) Directional or instructional signs.  Signs not exceeding four (4) square feet in area which 

provide direction, instruction or identify public facilities; are located entirely on the 

property to which they pertain; and do not in any way advertise a business. 

 

(2) Political signs.  Signs that meet the standards contained in this section. 

 

(3) Professional name plates.  Professional name plates not exceeding two (2) square feet in 

area. 

 

(4) Real estate, construction and finance signs.  These signs do not require a permit but signs 

larger than sixteen (16) square feet must be registered with the Building Department. 

 

(5) Rental signs.  Rental companies that provide portable signs to businesses must register 

with the Building Department and provide an inventory of where the signs are located by 

the 5th business day of each month in which they have a sign rented within the city.  The 

inventory shall include the dates that the sign was or will be in place. 

 

(6) Special displays.  Decorative displays used for holidays, public demonstrations or 

promotion of civic welfare or charitable purposes and on which there is no commercial 

advertising. 

 

(7) Store signs.  Signs erected on a show window or on the door of a store or business 

establishment which announces the name of the proprietor and the nature of the business 

conducted therein as well as temporary signs placed in windows used to advertise a 

special product or sale. 

 

(8) Street signs.  Signs erected by the city for street direction. 

 

(9) Transit directions.  Signs designating the location of a transit line, a railroad station or 

other public carrier not more than three (3) square feet in area. 

 

(e) Processing of application.  Upon receipt of a sign permit application, the Building Department 

shall schedule the application for review and approval by the Mandan Architectural Review 

Commission (MARC).  The MARC meeting shall occur within thirty (30) days of receipt of the 

application.  Once the MARC has reviewed the application and rendered a decision, the Building 

Department will process the application and issue any permit recommended by the MARC. 

 



Page 7 of 21 
 

(f) Mandan Architectural Review Commission (MARC).  The MARC is responsible to apply the 

standards contained in this section when reviewing any sign application submitted to it.  The 

MARC shall review the application and notify the Building Department of its determination.  If 

the MARC approves the application, the Building Department will issue the appropriate permit.  

The MARC may attach any conditions it deems appropriate to any approval granted. 

 

(g) Unsafe or unlawful signs.  The Building Department shall take whatever action is necessary to 

correct an unsafe condition with a sign or have an unlawful sign removed.  If necessary, the 

Building Department may file a complaint with any court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

(1) Whenever any sign becomes insecure, in danger of falling or otherwise unsafe, the owner 

of the sign shall be notified by the Building Department and given a specified time to 

correct the problem.   

 

(2) The Building Department shall order the removal of any sign that has been unlawfully 

installed, erected or maintained in violation of any of the provisions of this code. 

 

(3) The Building Department shall notify the owner and lessee of a building or structure 

whenever a sign is so erected as to obstruct free ingress to or egress from a required door, 

window, fire escape or other required exit way and shall require appropriate corrective 

action within a specified time frame. 

 

(4)  Signs damaged by storm or accident shall be repaired to a safe condition by the owner of 

the sign at the direction of the Building Department within a specified period of time.  

Signs that present a clear and present danger to the public shall be removed or repaired 

within forty-eight (48) hours.  Signs that are impeding traffic may be removed 

immediately by the city and the owner of the sign billed for the costs incurred by the city. 

 

(5)  Signs that are destroyed or removed shall not be re-erected, reconstructed, rebuilt or 

relocated unless the sign is made to comply with all applicable requirements of this 

section.   

 

(6) A sign that no longer advertises a bona fide business or product is considered an unlawful 

sign and must be removed or covered. 

 

(h) Non-conforming signs. 

 

(1) A previously approved or permitted and properly maintained non-conforming permanent 

sign will be allowed until the building is remodeled to an extent greater than fifty percent 

(50%) of its value, a new business occupies the building or structural or dimensional 

changes are proposed for the sign. 

 

(i) Maintenance and inspection. 

 

(1) It shall be the duty and responsibility of the owner or lessee of every sign to maintain the 

sign in a clean, sanitary and healthful condition. 

 

a. The sign, together with all supports, braces, guy wires and anchors, and 

individual letters and symbols shall be kept in good repair 

 



Page 8 of 21 
 

b. Parts that are not galvanized or constructed of approved corrosion-restrictive 

materials shall be painted as necessary to prevent corrosion. 

 

(2) Every sign for which a permit has been issued shall be inspected by the Building 

Department upon completion of erection or installation. 

 

(j) General requirements and provisions. 

 

(1) All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity to the provisions for materials, 

loads and stresses of the adopted version of International Building Code Appendix H. 

 

(2) No sign shall be illuminated by other than electrical means and electrical devices.  Wiring 

shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of the ND State Electrical Board.  

No open spark or flame shall be used for display purposes unless specifically approved in 

writing by the Building Department and the Fire Chief. 

 

(3) No sign shall be erected at the intersection of any street, alley or driveway in such a 

manner as to obstruct the sight triangle. 

 

a. A sign shall not be located within a sight triangle if the portion of the sign or 

support posts between three (3) feet and ten (10) feet above the edge of the 

roadway will be greater than ten (10) inches wide. 

 

b. The sight triangle for intersections that are not traffic light controlled is the area 

measured along the curb or edge of pavement of the street to a point with a 

straight line distance of twenty-five (25) feet from the curb or edge of pavement 

of the intersecting street. 

 

c. No sight triangle is required for intersections that are traffic light controlled. 

 

d. For intersections that are only partially controlled with stop signs, the sight 

triangle is only applied to the side streets that have stop signs. 

 

e. For an alley or driveway, the other side of the triangle is measured perpendicular 

to the street along the curb or edge of pavement of the alley or driveway to a 

point that is a distance of fifteen (15) feet from the curb or edge of pavement of 

the street.  Sight triangles for alleys or driveways in commercial or industrial 

districts are not required but are recommended.  Sight triangles for alleys and 

driveways in residential districts are not required. 

 

f. In zoning districts with a zero front yard setback, the depth of the sight triangle is 

limited to the boulevard area of the public right-of-way. 

 

g. Where existing conditions on a lot limit the options for location of a sign, the 

applicant may request that the MARC approve location of a designated type of 

sign within the limits of the sight triangle for a specific site.  The reasons for the 

approval of the location must be documented in the minutes of the MARC 

meeting. 

 

(4) No sign shall be erected that closely resembles or approximates the size, shape or form of 

an official traffic regulation sign or marker. 



Page 9 of 21 
 

 

(5) No private sign shall be attached to a public building or structure, a utility pole or any 

existing public signage. 

 

(6) The light for a sign shall not be directed into any residential dwelling or towards any 

oncoming vehicle. 

 

(7) Signs, other than window signs, containing or utilizing flashing, rotating, or moving 

lights shall be prohibited unless they are used solely for public safety, e.g. construction 

markers. 

 

(8) The use of laser lights, strobe lights, searchlights, beacons and similar upward or outward 

oriented lighting as part of any sign is prohibited. 

 

(9) No sign or wall mural shall be painted on any building without prior approval from the 

MARC. 

 

(10) No sign shall be attached to, affixed to, painted or drawn on trees, shrubs, rocks, other 

natural features or organic material unless approved by the MARC or the city 

commission for a specific site or application.  Certain species of wood products may be 

used for construction of a sign with approval of the MARC or city commission. 

 

(11) No Permanent sign shall use fluorescent type coloring such as that known as “day-glow”. 

 

(12) No sign shall be attached to the stairwell railing of a basement business unless a site 

specific waiver of this requirement is approved by the MARC or the city commission. 

 

(13) Obstructive signs are prohibited. 

 

(14) No advertising sign within three hundred (300) feet of a residentially zoned area shall 

have any bulb that is greater than eleven (11) watts of incandescent lighting or generate 

more than one hundred sixty-five (165) lumens in light brightness.  Public service 

information signs and other electronic message signs permitted within an area zoned for 

commercial or industrial use shall have a bulb no greater than seventy-five (75) watts of 

incandescent lighting or generate more than one thousand one hundred twenty-five 

(1125) lumens of light brightness. 

 

(15) Illuminated signs are permitted for buildings housing three (3) or more dwelling units. 

 

(16) No sign shall hide from a driver’s view or interfere in any material degree with the 

effectiveness within five hundred (500) feet of any traffic control device, sign or signal. 

 

(17) No advertising sign, by reason of location, position, shape, or color may be designed to 

be confused with any public sign.  The use of cautionary words such as:  “stop”, 

“danger”, “caution”, “beware” or similar words is prohibited. 

 

(18) No sign shall contain statements, words, or pictures of an obscene, indecent, 

pornographic, or immoral character. 

 



Page 10 of 21 
 

(19) Except for sidewalk signs in the downtown commercial area and signs above sidewalks, 

no sign shall be allowed in the public right-of-way unless otherwise provided for in this 

section. 

 

(20) Signs that can only be accessed from a state controlled roadway must have written 

approval from NDDOT. 

 

(21) No motorized vehicle or trailer on which is attached thereto or located thereon any sign 

or advertising device that provides the advertisement of products, services, or directs 

people to a business may be parked in a public right-of-way or on public property.  This 

subsection shall not apply to vehicles that have been decorated with signs or messages 

advertising a business or product or to vehicular signs that are attached to or affixed on a 

motor vehicle used in the normal day-day-day operations of a business. 

 

(22) No sign shall be permitted to obstruct any window, door, fire escape, stairway, or 

opening intended to provide air, ingress or egress for any building or structure. 

 

(23) Audio speakers or any form of pyrotechnics are prohibited on or in association with a 

sign. 

 

(k) Zoning district requirements. 

 

(1) On single family and two family residentially zoned lots or subdivisions the following 

sign standards shall apply. 

 

a. Each lot may have one (1) sign not exceeding two (2) square feet in area.  The 

sign may be of a wall, foundation or projecting type.  Signs may not project past 

the property boundary.  House numbers are not counted as a sign. 

 

b. For existing subdivisions, one (1) sign not exceeding twelve (12) square feet in 

area identifying the subdivision is allowed at each principal entrance. 

 

c. For existing subdivisions that were platted more than two (2) years ago, one (1) 

sign not exceeding six (6) square feet in area may be erected at each principal 

entrance to the subdivision advertising property for sale or rent within the 

subdivision. 

 

d. For new subdivisions that were platted less than two (2) years ago, one (1) sign 

not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet in area may be erected at each principal 

entrance to the subdivision advertising lots or dwellings for sale within the 

subdivision. 

 

e. No sign shall be illuminated. 

 

(2) In business and industrial zoning districts and residential lots containing three (3) or more 

dwelling units the following sign standards shall apply. 

 

a. Each business on a lot containing one or two businesses may have an individual 

freestanding sign.  Lots with more than two businesses must share any 

freestanding signage.  The MARC shall determine the number of signs allowed 

on any lot with multiple businesses. 



Page 11 of 21 
 

 

b. Each business may have one (1) projecting, roof or marquee sign per building 

side. 

 

c. Each business may have one (1) wall sign per building side, unless the MARC 

approves a site specific waiver to allow more than one (1) sign per building side. 

 

d. Each multi-family residential lot may have up to two (2) signs. 

 

(l) Awnings and awning signs. 

 

(1) Awnings may extend from a building over the public right-of-way two (2) feet less than 

the distance from building to curb.  Such structures shall be at least eight (8) feet above 

the sidewalk or ground grade line.  Suspended signage or valances shall be at least eight 

(8) feet above the sidewalk or ground grade line. 

 

(2) Awnings should complement the building architecture.  Awning shape, color, material, 

and location on the building shall be compatible with the building architecture and relate 

well to the dominant architectural features. 

 

(3) Signs will be allowed on the band or the valance.  Signs on a sloped surface shall be at 

the discretion of the MARC.  The sign band shall be no greater than twelve (12) inches in 

the downtown commercial area.  Signs shall not be the dominant feature of an awning. 

 

(4) Awnings in historic areas and on historic buildings should respect the history of the area 

and buildings. Historic colors, styles, and mounting locations based on research, old 

photographs, and historic records are encouraged. 

 

(5) Awnings should generally be located to fit within window and/or door recesses. 

 

(6) A uniform shape, color, and placement should be used when multiple awnings are 

proposed for a single building. New awnings should generally match any existing 

awnings on the building. Existing inconsistent awning styles of a building do not justify 

approval of additional or new awning styles. Inconsistent awning styles are to be reduced, 

not increased with new awning approvals. 

 

(7) Individual awning proposals for multi-tenant buildings will be evaluated as to their 

acceptability as a model for use by all other similarly located tenants in the buildings. 

 

(8) Awnings shall be approved by the MARC if installed under significant eave overhangs, 

cantilevers, or other prominent architectural projections. 

 

(9) In the downtown commercial area, day-glow colors, reflective materials and illuminated 

back lighting of transparent materials are not allowed unless a site specific waiver of this 

restriction is granted by the MARC. 

 

(10) Solid colors or low contrast, non-jarring patterns are generally acceptable awning color 

treatments. 

 

(11) Fabric awnings shall not be painted. 

 



Page 12 of 21 
 

(12) Awnings shall be maintained in good repair with a clean and attractive appearance as 

long as they are installed on the building. Torn, bent and/or faded awnings shall be 

repaired, replaced or removed. 

 

(13) An application for an awning that is submitted to the MARC shall include a sample of the 

proposed awning material to show color, texture and finish. 

 

(14) If any upper story window is treated with an awning, then all upper story windows on 

that side of the building shall be treated with awnings, unless another design is approved 

by the MARC. 

 

(m) Basement business signs. 

 

(1) When only one business is utilizing a basement area, an appropriate wall sign may be 

provided. 

 

(2) When two businesses exit from the basement of a building, appropriate signs or 

directories to such businesses may be provided on the wall over the entrance to the 

basement and coordinated with other building signs. 

 

(3) Signs or directories shall not exceed nine (9) square feet in area. 

 

(n) Benches or structures with signage. 

 

(1) The total number of bench signs located in any district shall be limited and approved by 

the MARC. 

 

(2) Bench signs shall not be located closer than seventy-five (75) feet to one another 

(measured from base to base). 

 

(3) Maximum height of four (4) feet. 

 

(4) Maximum sign area of twenty (20) square feet. 

 

(5) Only one advertising panel advertising one business is permitted per bench. 

 

(6) Bench rental companies shall be licensed with the City. 

 

(7) All signs and structures shall be properly maintained, well-kept and in good condition. 

 

(8) If signage is out of date, the signage or the structure shall be removed or replaced. 

 

(9) Signs must advertise Mandan businesses or events if they are located within public right-

of-way. 

 

(10) MARC must review and recommend the design and content of any bench sign that will 

be located in public right-of-way.  The city commission must grant approval for any 

bench sign that is to be located in public right-of-way.  City commission may include 

conditions or design requirements with its approval. 

 

(o) Billboard signs. 



Page 13 of 21 
 

 

(1) No billboard sign shall exceed a height of forty (40) feet above the lot grade of the 

adjacent roadway. 

 

(2) The exposed upright or super structure of billboard signs shall be of non-corrosive metal 

materials or be painted a color so as to blend with the surrounding environment. 

 

(3) Billboard signs shall be of all steel or similar material, constructed and designed in 

accordance with the Mandan Building Code. 

 

(4) There shall be a minimum of three hundred (300) feet between billboards. 

 

(5) All billboards shall meet City, State and Federal requirements and must be located totally 

on private property. 

 

(p) Canopy and canopy signs. 

 

(1) Canopies and canopy signs attached to a building may extend from the building into the 

public right-of-way to a point within two (2) feet of the back of curb or edge of pavement 

where there is no curb.  No portion of such a structure or anything attached to the 

structure shall be lower than eight (8) feet above the sidewalk or ground grade line. 

 

(2) Canopy signs shall not extend more than twelve (12) inches above or below a canopy. 

 

(3) Canopy signs shall not extend closer than three (3) inches to any edge of a canopy. 

 

(4) Canopy signs may be located beneath or above an overhead canopy but shall not project 

lower than eight (8) feet above the sidewalk. 

 

(5) There shall be only one (1) canopy sign per business on each street exposure unless 

otherwise approved by the MARC. 

 

(6) Canopies should complement the building architecture. Canopy shape, color, material, 

and location on the building shall be compatible with the building architecture, relate well 

to the dominant architectural features, and not cover up or hide handsome materials or 

important details. 

 

(7) Canopies in historic areas and on historic buildings should respect the history of the area 

and buildings. Historic colors, styles, and mounting locations based on research, old 

photographs, and historic records are encouraged. 

 

(8) Individual canopy proposals for multi-tenant buildings will be evaluated as to their 

acceptability as a model for use by all other similarly located tenants in the buildings. 

 

(9) Solid colors and/or low contrast, non-jarring patterns are generally acceptable canopy 

color treatments. 

 

(10) All applications for canopies shall include a sample of the proposed awning material to 

show color, texture, and finish. 

 



Page 14 of 21 
 

(11) If any upper story window is treated with a canopy, then all upper story windows shall be 

treated with canopies or as otherwise approved by the MARC. 

 

(q) Electronic signs. 

 

(1) Flashing is prohibited. 

 

(2) The City reserves the right to require any sign to be modified based on display message 

including timing or frame changes or effects of movements displayed. 

 

(3) Ground signs, as defined by the IBC Appendix H102 and commonly referred to as 

billboards or off-premise signs, are permitted in commercial and industrial districts.  

When adjacent to federal or state aid highways, all NDDOT standards for design and 

approval must be followed.  In those districts where permitted, ground signs must be 

spaced at least three hundred (300) feet apart along the roadway.  Ground signs may not 

exceed sixteen (16) feet by fifty (50) feet per face of sign in size (multiple faces must be 

treated as one face), and the support structure and sign may not exceed fifty (50) feet in 

height, measured from the top of the nearest curb line to the top of the sign or structure.  

Additional requirements for digital billboards are included elsewhere in this section. 

 

(4) No electronic message center sign installed after January 1, 2010 shall be permitted to 

operate unless it is equipped with: 

 

a. A default mechanism that shall freeze the sign in one position as a static message 

if a malfunction occurs; and 

 

b. A mechanism able to automatically adjust the illuminative brightness of the 

display according to ambient light conditions by means of a light 

detector/photocell. 

 

(5) An electronic message center sign installed prior to January 1, 2010 shall be allowed to 

continue operation provided the brightness of the sign does not exceed a maximum 

illumination of five thousand (5,000) NITS during daylight hours or a maximum 

illumination of seven hundred fifty (750) NITS between one-half hour before sunset to 

one-half hour after sunrise as measured at the sign's face at maximum brightness.  These 

illumination levels may be set manually or by an alternative method approved by the 

Building Official. 

 

(6) Only one (1) electronic message center sign shall be allowed per property. 

 

(7) The electronic message center sign portion of any sign shall not exceed the area specified 

in the table below.  The maximum size is based on the type of zoning district in which the 

sign is located and the functional classification of the roadway adjacent to the sign or 

fifty (50) percent of the total sign area, whichever is less. 

 
 Functional Classification of Adjacent Roadway 

Zoning District Interstate 
Principal 

Arterial 

Minor 

Arterial 
Collector Local 

Industrial 100 sf 100 sf 72 sf 48 sf 32 sf 

Commercial 100 sf 100 sf 72 sf 48 sf 32 sf 

Neighborhood Commercial 72 sf 72 sf 48 sf 32 sf 32 sf 



Page 15 of 21 
 

 

(8) Electronic message center signs shall be subject to the following operational 

requirements: 

 

a. The sign shall have a frame hold time of no less than one (1) second.  The use of 

animation and background animation is allowed and is not subject to the one (1) 

second frame hold time requirement. 

 

b. Entrance and exit effects may be used to transition from one frame to another, 

provided said entrance effects result in all of the text within the frame appearing 

at once or in the order that the text is normally read (including, but not limited to, 

scrolling from right to left or scrolling from bottom to top entrance effects).  

Entrance effects where all of the text within the frame does not appear at once or 

in the order that the text is normally read are prohibited (including, but not 

limited to, scrolling from left to right, scrolling from top to bottom, and entrance 

effects referred to as slot machine, slots, splice, mesh, radar, kaleidoscope and 

spin).  There are no limitations on the types of exit effects used.  Except for such 

transitions, each frame shall remain static with no additional frame or hold 

effects applied to text within the frame (including, but not limited to, the fading 

or flashing on any part of the message and hold effects referred to as flash, spin, 

twinkle, wavy and rumble).  The use of bijou lights as a frame effect is allowed. 

 

c. The use of streaming video or full-motion video on any electronic message center 

sign is prohibited. 

 

(9) Electronic message center signs located within three hundred (300) feet of any 

residentially zoned district, as measured from any part of the sign to the nearest property 

line within any residential zoning district, are subject to the following additional 

requirements: 

 

a. The sign shall not exceed thirty-two (32) square feet in area, or fifty (50) percent 

of the total sign area, whichever is less. 

 

b. Between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., the sign shall be allowed to operate.  Between 

10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., the sign shall only display static images with a frame 

hold time of no less than three (3) seconds and shall be limited to instantaneous 

transitions from one static frame to another static frame without the use of any 

frame entrance, exit or hold effects or the use of any animation or background 

animation. 

 

(10) An electronic message center sign cannot be installed on an existing sign that is 

nonconforming unless the entire sign is brought into compliance with all applicable 

provisions of this chapter. 

 

(11) No portion of any existing sign shall be replaced with an electronic message center sign 

unless a sign permit is obtained for the new electronic message center sign. 

 

(12) Digital billboards must be located at least three hundred (300) feet from any other non-

digital ground sign (billboard), at least twelve hundred (1,200) feet from any other digital 

billboard, and at least five hundred (500) feet from an interstate interchange, as measured 

from any part of the sign to the nearest portion of any part of any other billboard sign on 



Page 16 of 21 
 

the same side of the roadway or to the nearest right-of-way line of the interchange.  

Digital billboards that face state or federal highways are subject to NDDOT regulation. 

 

(13) Digital billboard signs shall have a frame hold time of no less than seven (7) seconds and 

must transition instantaneously from one static image to another static image without any 

special effects.  The use of streaming video, full-motion video, and animation or frame 

effects is prohibited. 

 

(r) Marquee and marquee signs. 

 

(1) Marquees and marquee signs attached to a building may extend from the building into the 

public right-of-way to a point within two (2) feet of the back of curb or edge of pavement 

where there is no curb.  No portion of such a structure or anything attached to the 

structure shall be lower than eight (8) feet above the sidewalk or ground grade line.   

(2) A sign attached to the face of a marquee may not exceed three (3) feet above the top edge 

of the marquee and not to extend below the marquee’s lower edge. 

 

(3) Marquee signs shall be constructed entirely of approved materials and size. 

 

(4) Marquee signs may extend the full length but in no case shall they project beyond the 

ends of the marquee. 

 

(s) Monument signs. 

 

(1) A monument sign shall be solid from the grade to the top of the structure using non-

flammable architectural materials. 

 

(2) The minimum setback is ten (10) feet from the property line or sight triangle, whichever 

is greater. 

 

(3) The maximum allowable height of a monument sign is twelve (12) feet unless the sign is 

set back farther from the property line or sight triangle.  For each additional two (2) feet 

of setback, the height of the sign can be increased by one (1) foot up to a maximum sign 

height of sixteen (16) feet. 

 

(4) Monument signs may be incorporated into a retaining wall or masonry wall. 

 

(5) The bottom edge of the sign portion of a monument sign must be in continuous contact 

with the base and be a minimum of twelve (12) inches above grade. 

 

(6) Monument signs must be placed within a landscaped area. 

 

(t) Post and panel signs. 

 

(1) A post and panel sign shall be no taller than twelve (12) feet off the ground. 

 

(2) No part of the sign may encroach on the sight triangle. 

 

(3) The bottom edge of a post and panel sign must be a minimum of twelve (12) inches 

above grade and must be placed within a landscaped area. 

 



Page 17 of 21 
 

(4) The support posts must be made of a non-flammable material or as otherwise approved 

by the MARC. 

 

(u) Projecting signs. 

 

(1) The bottom edge of the sign board, or of any affixed devices, must be at least eight (8) 

feet above grade. 

 

(2) A projecting sign or any part thereof may not project more than thirty-six (36) inches 

from the face of the supporting building, not be within less than two (2) feet of the back 

of the curb, not be more than ten (10) feet in height and not be greater than thirty (30) 

inches in width. 

 

(3) No projecting sign shall extend more than four (4) feet above a building roof eave or 

parapet. 

 

(4) No projecting sign shall originate from other than a front wall of the building. The 

maximum square footage for sign face is fifty (50) square feet unless otherwise approved 

by the MARC. 

 

(5) No projecting sign shall be permitted in any alleyway. 

 

(v) Pylon and pole signs. 

 

(1) No pylon or pole sign shall extend into a public utility easement or right-of-way. 

 

(2) Unless a greater height is approved by the MARC for a specific property, the maximum 

pylon or pole sign height is twenty-five (25) feet in the downtown commercial area; forty 

(40) feet in the other commercial and industrial districts; and sixty (60) feet in the 

Gateway Overlay Zone. 

 

(3) The sign portion of a pylon or pole sign shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet above the top 

of curb or surrounding grade, whichever is higher.  The clearance shall be a minimum of 

thirteen (13) feet within a vehicle parking or travel area. 

 

(4) For single business properties with sufficient frontage, multiple pylon or pole signs will 

be allowed provided they can be set back from the adjacent or adjoining lot line a 

minimum of twenty-five (25) feet and are no closer to each other, as measured parallel to 

the property frontage, than one hundred fifty-five (155) feet or otherwise as approved by 

the MARC. 

 

(5) A pylon or pole sign’s support shall originate from the surface of the ground only and be 

made of non-flammable material. 

 

(6) Pylon or pole signs may be used as a directory for more than one business. 

 

(w) Roof signs.  Roof signs shall not project above the roof peak (this includes mounting brackets). 

 

(x) Sidewalk signs. 

 

(1) All signs must be self-supporting and not be attached to any other structure or object. 



Page 18 of 21 
 

 

(2) One (1) sign of this type will be allowed per place of ground level business. 

 

(3) The maximum width of a sign shall be two and one half (2.5) feet, a minimum height of 

three (3) feet and a maximum height of four (4) feet. 

 

(4) The sign support and base shall not extend beyond the edge of the sign. 

 

(5) A sign shall be placed only where a minimum width of three (3) feet for pedestrian 

movements can be maintained. 

 

(6) This type of sign is allowed only within a business district. 

 

(7) Signs may be placed on the sidewalk only during hours of operation and must be stored 

inside the building during non-business hours. 

 

(8) Signs may be used for on-premise advertising only. 

 

(9) Signs shall not be illuminated. 

 

(10) Streamers, flags or banners shall not be attached to the sign or use the sign as an anchor. 

 

(y) Temporary signs. 

 

(1) Temporary signs are not to be used as a substitute for erecting a permanent sign.  

Temporary signs are to be used for short duration events that do not occur on a regular 

basis.  Activities that repeatedly occur throughout the year are to be publicized using 

permanent signage. 

 

(2) Use of off-premise temporary signs is limited to a maximum of 30 days per event, 

activity or function.  Off-premise temporary or portable signs may be used only in places 

where they meet all city, state and federal regulations.  Temporary or portable off-

premise signs are treated the same as permanent billboards under federal law 

administered by NDDOT.  Signs proposed to be located along federal aid routes that are 

impacted by the federal rules regulating off-premise signs must receive written 

permission from NDDOT.  A copy of the written permission from NDDOT must be 

presented to the city building department prior to sign installation.  Off-premise 

temporary or portable signs can be no closer together than 100 feet along a state highway. 

 

(3) The owner of a property where a temporary or portable off-premise sign is to be placed 

must provide the city with written permission for the placement of the sign prior to 

installation of the sign. 

 

(4) Except for the requirements for construction, finance and real estate signs and political 

signs; each type of temporary sign is limited to two hundred forty (240) days per calendar 

year per property. 

 

(5) Banner signs are limited to three (3) per property.  The total area of all banner signs on a 

wall may not be larger than twenty percent (20%) of the wall surface area of the wall to 

which they are attached or which they are in front of.   

 



Page 19 of 21 
 

(6) Construction, finance and real estate signs. 

 

a. Construction and finance signs may be displayed during the duration of the 

construction phase of a project and must be removed within thirty (30) days after 

receiving a certificate of occupancy. 

 

b. Signs indicating that an individual lot is for sale, sold, for rent or for lease are 

limited to sixteen (16) square feet in size. 

 

c. Signs indicating that a large, undeveloped property is for sale are limited to forty-

eight (48) square feet in size unless a larger size is approved by the city engineer 

for a specific parcel. 

 

d. Open house signs advertising a one or two day event that are no greater than 

thirty-six (36) inches in height and in place for less than forty-eight (48) hours 

may be placed in the public right-of-way provided that they are located at least 

one (1) foot behind the back of curb or three feet off the pavement where no curb 

exists.  Other types of real estate signs or signs that will be in place for more than 

forty-eight (48) hours may be authorized by city commission to be placed in the 

public right-of-way. 

 

e. Once a property has been sold, the sale sign must be removed within thirty (30) 

days after closing. 

 

f. Parade of Homes signs shall conform to the following requirements. 

 

1. The signs shall be placed at least one (1) foot behind the back of curb or 

three (3) feet off the edge of pavement where no curb exists. 

 

2. The signs may be in place for no more than twelve (12) days twice each 

year. 

 

3. The signs shall be located no closer than one hundred (100) feet to an 

intersection as measured from the pedestrian crossing or stop bar. 

 

4. The signs shall not be attached to trees, traffic control signs, traffic signal 

poles or street light poles. 

 

5. No ribbons, balloons, streamers, lighting or ancillary devises may be 

attached to the signs. 

 

6. The Bismarck-Mandan Home Builders Association shall be responsible 

for any costs incurred during installation or removal of the signs. 

 

7. The signs shall not be higher than three (3) feet above the road surface. 

  

(7) Flag signs are limited to one (1) per twenty (20) feet of lot frontage with a limit of five 

(5) per lot. 

 

(8) Political signs.  Political signs shall follow North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) 

regulations. 



Page 20 of 21 
 

 

(9) Portable signs. 

 

a. All companies that rent portable signs to customers within the City must be 

licensed with the City and carry liability insurance in a form and amount 

specified by the city.  Each rental sign shall have the rental companies name and 

phone number clearly visible on the sign. 

 

b. All portable signs and sign lettering shall be properly maintained, well-kept and 

in good condition.  The city may order removal of a sign that is not advertising a 

current event or is not being maintained in good condition. 

 

c. No ribbons, balloons, streamers, lighting or ancillary devises may be attached to 

any portable sign. 

 

d. Each property is allowed one (1) portable sign.  Larger properties may have more 

than one (1) portable sign as long as they are placed a minimum of one hundred 

fifty-five (155) feet apart. 

 

e. Maximum square footage for a portable sign shall be sixty-four (64) square feet 

and maximum height shall be eight (8) feet. The portable sign shall not be 

illuminated or electronic. 

 

f. The Owner of each rented portable sign shall submit a monthly report to the 

Building Department showing days in use and the location of the sign. 

 

g. “Floppy guy” signs are a type of portable sign. 

 

 (10) Streamers may be strung on a line or cord no longer than three (3) times the width of the 

lot. 

 

(z) Wall signs. 

 

(1) Wall signs shall be securely fastened to the wall of a building by its supporting structure. 

 

(2) Wall signs placed against exterior walls of buildings and structures shall not extend more 

than twelve (12) inches from a wall’s surface.  The lowest edge of such sign shall be a 

minimum of eight (8) feet above grade unless a lower height is approved by MARC. 

 

(3) No combination of wall signs and supports shall exceed twenty (20) percent of the 

signable wall surface area up to a maximum of two hundred (200) square feet unless 

other limits are approved by the MARC. 

 

(4) Signs printed directly on exterior walls or surface of a building shall be prohibited. 

 

(5) No wall sign shall extend beyond the width of a building or project above the roof eave. 

 

(6) Wall signs advertising products or services not related to the primary business shall be 

approved by the MARC. 

 



Page 21 of 21 
 

(7) Second floor businesses can utilize wall signs to advertise their establishments but must 

do so between floors and not below their floor. 

 

(8) A wall sign shall not obstruct the required door or exit window of any building nor shall 

it be attached to or placed on fire escapes. 

 

(aa) Window signs. 

 

(1) No paper or solid surface signs shall be permitted on a second floor window or above. 

 

(2) No window signs shall advertise or identify a business other than the one contained 

therein. 

 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-2 is reenacted and Sec. 105-1-15 is enacted as presented. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Timothy A. Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

James Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       ______________  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    ______________ 

 
 


	Agenda November 15, 2016
	Employee Service Awards
	Moos & Schaaf retirement information - added 11/14/16
	Minutes November 1, 2016 Regular Mtg.
	Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 1241 related to fences, sight triangles, and signs
	ESA Amendment with AE2S for Booster Station and Instrumentation and Controls (I&C)
	Traffic Safety Contract from NDDOT Safety Division
	Lakewood 9th Stormwater pipe easement
	Benefit for Nancy Miller games of chance at Mandan Eagles
	Triple H Miniature Horse Rescue games of chance at Station West Bar & Grill - added 11/15/16
	Morton-Mandan Public Library (MMPL) Building Repairs - updated estimates - Added 11/15/16
	Morton-Mandan Public Library (MMPL) Building Repairs
	Recycling Update
	McKenzie Drive Project Consultant Selection
	Urban Roads and Urban Regional Transportation Improvements Program (TIP) for 2021
	Ord. 1241 related to fences, sight triangles and signs



